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PART A

GENERAL DUE DILIGENCE REQUEST

GENERAL INFORMATION

Each Institution must provide a single complete set of responses to Part A with respect to

the Grantee, along with copies on 4 CDs or flash drives.

College Nanne: Beth Medrash Govoha of America (BMG)

Address: 617 Sixth Street

City, State Zip Lakewood, NJ 08701

EIN: 21-0634542

Contact person: Chanie Jacobowitz, M.S.W.

Title: Director of Government Affairs

Email address: ~acobowitz(a7,bmg.edu

Telephone No. (732)367-1060 ext. 4219

College website: N/A

Document Signatory Aaron. Kotler

Title: Chief Executive Officer

Type of Entity: ❑State College ❑County College Q Private College
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General Information with respect to the Grantee:

1. Organization of the Grantee

i. Certificate or arCicles of incorporation or articles of association of the Grantee

and any certificates or articles of amendment or merger. Please see Appendix A.

ii. By-laws of the Grantee, including any annendanents. Please see Appendix B.

iii. Minutes of all Board of Directors/Trustees and executive, planning and finance

committee meetings since Septennber 1, 2012.

As per e-mail of October 17, 2013 from NJEFA, BMG is prepared to bring copies

of all Board minutes to a designated location to be reviewed by Bond Counsel.

BMG has scheduled to do so on November 6, 2013.

2. Certain Tax Matters --PRIVATE COLLEGES ONLY

IRS Determination Letter relating to the status of the Grantee as an exempt

organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and as a

nonprivate foundation under Section 509 of the Internal Revenue Code.

Please see Appendix C.

ii. Copies of 3 most recently filed IRS Forms 990 and 990T, ox evidence that such

filings were not required.

The Internal Revenue Service has determined that Beth Medrash Govoha is not

required to file a Form 990. Please see Appendix D for a letter from the IRS dated

August 26, 2008 confirming that Beth Medrash Govoha is not required to file a

Form 990.

3. Operations and Financial Condition of the Grantee

Audited financial statements for the most recent audited year. Please see

Appendix E for Audited Financial Stafiements for the Fiscal Year ending March

31, 2013.

ii. Grantee's most recent letter of representations to Auditor. Please see Appendix

F.
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iii. Auditor's management Ietter(s) to the Grantee for the nnost recent audited year.

BMG's Auditor did not issue a management letter, as there were no material

findings from the audit.

iv. Copies of any nnanagement, service or professional contracts related to the

operation of the Project or any portion thereof. N/A

v. Any correspondence with government agencies concerning_ hazardous waste

relating to the Project.

This is N/A for the Library and Research Center. A minimal amount of asbestos

was discovered in a restroom area in the Princeton Avenue Academic Center

and fully removed. All documentation in regards to that abatement was

included with our grant application.

vi. IRS or SEC examinations of the Grantee and any bond issues, revenue agents' ox

other investigators' reports and other information relating to any other audit or

exam of the Grantee (federal, state and local) conducted since September 1,

2010. N/A

vii. Have you adopted written post issuance tax compliance procedures with respect

to tax exempt bonds? OYes QNo If yes, please provide a copy.

BMG will adopt any necessary written post issuance tax compliance procedures

upon notification of requirement by Bond Counsel.
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BYLAWS

OF

BETH MEDRASH GOVOHA OF AMERICA

ARTICLE 1
OFFICES

SECTION 1. PRINCIPAL OFFICE

The principal office of the Corporation is located at 617 Sixth Street, Township o
f

Lakewood, County of Ocean, State of New Jersey.

SECTION 2. OT~-iER OFFICES

The Corporation may also have offices at such places, within or without its state

of incorporation, where it is qualified to do business, as its business and activities may

require, and as the Board of Trustees may, from time to time, designate.

ARTICLE 2
NONPROFIT PURPOSES

SECTION 1. IRS SECTION 501(C)(3) PURPOSES

This Corporation is organized exclusively for one or more of the purposes as

specified in Section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code, including, for such

puxposes, the making of distributions to organizations that qualify as exempt

organizations under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Section 2. OBJECTIVES AND PURPOSES

The objectives and purposes of this Corporation shall be as follows:

(a) The general purpose for which the Corporation is formed is to further those

purposes for which a corporation may be formed under the New Jersey Nonprofit

Corporation Act, N.J.S. 1SA: 2-8, et seq.

(b) The primary purposes for which this Corporation is formed are to establish and

maintain an institute of higher education, to advance the cause of education,

generally, to carry on a program for the advanced study of the Talmud, in

particular, and to give diplomas and to grant and confer degrees as may be

authorized by the New Jersey Comrn.ission on Higher Education and in

accordance with the laws of the State of New 3ersey.

Bylaws of Beth Medrash Govoha 1
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(c) This Cozporation shall not, as a substantial part of its activities, carry on

propaganda or otherwise attempt to influence legislation; nor shall it participate or

intervene (by publication or distribution of any stateme~its ox otherwise) in any

political campaign on behalf of or in opposition to any candidate for public office.

(d) Notwithstanding any other provision of these Articles, the Corporation shall not

operate for pecuniary profit or financial gain, and, more specifically, not for the

purposes prohibited under Section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code of

1986, and the regulations thereunder, as the same may now exist or as they may

be hereafter amended from time to tinne.

ARTICLE 3
TRUSTEES

SECTION 1. NUMBER

The Corporation shall have no fewer than nine (9) and no more than forty- five

(45) Trustees. Collectively, they shall be lcn.own as the Board of Trustees, and will also be

referred to as the Board of Directors.

SECTION 2. QUALIFICATIONS

Trustees shall be of the age of majority in this state aiad shall be elected by the

Board from among outstanding business, civic and communal leaders. The Roshei

Yeshiva shall be ex-officio members of the Board, and shall be entitled to exercise all

rights thereto.

SECTION 3. POWERS

Subject to the provisions of the laws of this state and any limitations in the

Articles of Incorporation and these Bylaws relating to action required or permitted to be

taken or approved by the members, if any, of this Corporation, the activities and affairs of

this Corporation shall be conducted and all corporate powers shall be exercised by or

under the direction of the Board of Trustees.

SECTION 4. DUTIES

It shall be the duty of the Trustees to:

(a) Perform any and all duties imposed on them collectively or individually by law,

by the Articles of Incorporation, or by these Bylaws;

Bylaws of Beth Medxash Govoha 2
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(b) Appoint and remove, employ and discharge, and except as otherwise provided in

these Bylaws, prescribe the duties and fix the compensation, if any, of all officers,

agents and employees of the Corporation;

(c) Supervise all officers, agents and employees of the Corporation to assure that
their duties are performed properly;

(d) Meet at such times and places as required by these Bylaws;

(e) Register their addresses with the Secretary of the corporation, and notices of
meetings mailed or telegraphed to them at such addresses shall be valid notices

thereof.

SECTION 5. TERM OF OFFICE

Each Trustee shall hold office for a period of three years and until his or her

successor is elected and qualifies.

The present members of the Board, serving at the date of the adoption of these

Bylaws, shall constitute the Board and serve until the next Annual Meeting. At that

meeting, one third (1/3) of the Board shall be elected by the existing Board for one year,

until the next Annual Meeting; and one thixd (1/3) shall be elected for two years, until the

third Annual Meeting. At each succeeding Annual Meeting, members of the Board shall

be elected for three years to fill the term of those whose terms have expired.

SECTION 6. COMPENSATION

Trustees shall serve without compensation except that a reasonable fee may be

paid to Trustees for attending regular and special meetings of the Board. In addition, they

shall be allowed reasonable advancement or reimbursement of expenses incurred in the

performance of their duties.

SECTION 7. PLACE OF MEETINGS

Meetings shall be held at the principal office of the Corporation unless otherwise
provided by the Board ox at such other place as may be designated from time to time by
resolution of the Board of Trustees

SECTION 8. REGULAR MEETINGS

Regular meetings shall be held at least 4 times a year, with no more than a 3
month lapse between meetings. The exact date and time of each meeting shall be
determined by the chairman of the Board, with adequate advance notice to be provided to
each member of the Board.

Bylaws of Beth Medrash Govoha 3

 

JA0260



At the regular rxieeting of Trustees held in January, the Board of Trustees shall

hold an election to fill the slots of all Tz~ustees whose terms have expired. Voting fox the

election of Trustees shall be by written ballot. Each Trustee shall cast one vote per
candidate, and may vote for as many candidates as the number of candidates to be elected

to the Board. The candidates receiving the highest number of votes up to the number of

Trustees to be elected shall be elected to serve on the Board.

SECTION 9. S~'ECIAL MEETINGS

Special meetings of the Board of Trustees may be called by the Chairperson of the

Board, the President, the Vice-Chairperson, the Secretary, by any two Trustees, ox, if

different, by the persons specifically authorized under the laws of this state to call special

meetings of the Board. Such meetings shall be held at the principal office of the
Corporation or, if different, at the place designated by the person or persons calling the

special meeting.

SECTION 10. NOTICE OF MEETINGS

Unless otherwise provided by the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws, or

provisions of law, the following provisions shall govern the giving of notice fox meetings

of the Board of Trustees:

(a) Regular Meetings. No notice need be given of any regular meeting of the Board

of Trustees.

(b) ~ecial Meetings. At least one week prior notice shall be given by the Secretary

of the Corporation of each special meeting of the Board. Such notice may be oral

or written, may be given personally, by first class mail, by telephone, or by

facsimile machine, and shall state the place, date and time of the meeting and the

matters proposed to be acted upon at meeting. In the case of facsimile
notification, the Trustee to be contacted shall acknowledge personal receipt of the

facsimile notice by a reiurn message or telephone call within twenty-four hours of

the first facsimile transmission,

(c) Waiver of Notice. Whenever any notice of a meeting is required to be given to
any Trustee of this corporation under provisions of the Articles of Incorporation,
these Bylaws, or the law of this state, a waiver of notice in writing signed by the
Trustee, whether before or after the time of the meeting, shall be equivalent to the
giving of such notice.
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SECTION l 1. QUORUM FOR MEETINGS

A quorum shall consist of one-third (1/3) of the meixabers of the Board of
Trustees.

Except as otherwise provided under the Articles of Incozporation, these Bylaws,
or provisions of law, no business shall be considered by the Board at any meeting at
which the required quorum is not present, and the only motion which the chair shall
entertain at such meeting is a motion to adjourn.

SECTION 12. MAJORITY ACTION AS BOARD ACTION

Every act ox decision done or made by a majority of the Trustees present at a
meeting duly held at which a quorum is present is the act of the Board of Trustees,
unless the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws, or provisions of law require a
greater percentage ox different voting rules for approval of a mattex by the Board.

SECTION 13. CONDUCT OF MEETINGS

Meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be presided over by the Chaizperson of
the Board, or, if no such person has been so designated or, in his or her absence, the
President of the Corporation or, in his or her absence, by the Vice Chairperson of the
Cozpoxation or, in the absence of each of these persons, by a Chairperson chosen by a
majority of the Trustees present at the meeting. The Secretary of the Corporation shall
act as a secretary of all meetings of fhe Board, provided that, in his ox her absence, the
presiding officer shall appoint another person to act as Secretary of the Meetings.

Meetings shall be governed by Roberts Rules of Order, insofar as such rules are
not inconsistent with ox in conflict with the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws,
or with provisions of law.

SECTION 14. VACANCIES

Vacancies on the Board of Trustees shall exist (1) on the death, resignation or
rennoval of any Trustee, and (2) whenever the number of authorized Trustees is
increased.

Any Trustee may resign effective upon giving written notice to the Chairperson of
the Board, the President, the Secretary, or the Board of Trustees, unless the notice
specifies a latex time for the effectiveness of such resignation. No Trustee may resign
if the Corporation would then be left without a duly elected Trustee or Trustees in
Charge of its affairs, except upon notice to the Office of the Attorney Genera], or other
appropriate agency of this state.

Trustees may be xemoved from office, with or without cause, as permitted by and
in accordance with the laws of this state.
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Unless otherwise prohibited by the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws or

provisions of law, vacancies on the Board may be filled by approval of the Board of

Trustees. If the number of Trustees then in office is less than a quorum, a vacancy o
n

the Board may be filled by approval of a majority of the Trustees then in office or by

a sole remaining Trustee.. A person. elected to fill a vacancy on the Board shall hold

office until the next election of the Board of Trustees or until his ox her death,

resignation or removal fronn office.

SECTION 15. NONLIABILITY OF TRUSTEES

The Trustees shall not be personally liable for the debts, liabilities, ox other

obligations of the Corporation.

SECTION 16. INDEMNIFICATION BY CORPORATION OF TRUSTEES AND

OFFICERS

The Trustees and officers of the Corporation shall be indemnified by the

Corporation to the fullest extent permissible under the laws of this state.

SECTION 17. INSURANCE FOR CORPORATE AGENTS

Except as may be otherwise provided under provisions of law, the Board of

Trustees may adopt a resolution authorizing the purchase and maintenance of

insurance on behalf of any agent of the cozporation (including a Trustee, of~cex,

employee or other agent of the Corporation) against liabilities asserted against or

incurred by the agent in such capacity or arising out of the agent's status as such,

whether or not the Corporation would have the power to indemnify the agent against

such liability under the Articles o~ Incorporation, these Bylaws ox provisions of law.

ARTICLE 4
OFFICERS

SECTION 1. DESIGNATION OP OFFICERS

The officers of the Cozporation shall be a President, a Vice President, a Secretary,

and a Treasurer. The Corporation may also have a Chaizperson of the Board, one or

more Vice Presidents, Assistant Secretaries, Assistant Treasurers, and other such

officers with such titles as may be determined from time to time by the Board of

Trustees.

SECTION 2. QUALIFICATIONS

Any person rziay serve as an officer of this Corporation.
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SECTION 3. ELECTION AND TERM OF OFFICE

Officers shall be elected by the Board of Trustees, at any time, and each officer

shall hold office until he or she resigns or is removed or is otherwise disqualified to

serve, or until his or her successor shall be elected and qualified, whichever occurs

first.

SECTION 4. REMOVAL AND RESIGNATION

Any officer may be removed, either with or without cause, by the Board of

Trustees, at any tinne. Any officer may xesign at any time by giving written notice to

the board of trustees or to the President or Secretazy of the Corporation. Any such

resignation shall take effect at the date of receipt of such notice or at any later date

specified therein, and, unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such

resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective. The above provision of this

Section shall be superseded by any conflicting terms of a contract which has been

approved ox ratified by the Board relating to the employment of any off cer of the

Corporation.

SECTION 5. VACANCIES

Any vacancy caused by the death, resignation, removal, disqualification, or

otherwise, of any officer shall be filled by the Board of Trustees. In the event of a

vacancy in any office other than that of President, such vacancy may be filled

temporarily by appointment by the President until such time as the Board shall fill the

vacancy. Vacancies occurring in offices of officers appointed at the discretion of the

Board may or may not be filled, as the Board shall determine

SECTION 6. DUTIES OF PRESIDENT

The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Corporation and shall,

subject to the control of the Board of Trustees, supervise and control the affairs of the

Corporation and the activities of the officers. He or she perform all duties incident to
his or her office and such other duties as may be required by law, by the Articles of
Incorporation, or by these Bylaws, or which tray be prescribed from tiz~ne to time by
the Board of Trustees. Unless another person is specifically appointed as Chairperson
of the Board of Trustees, the President shall preside at all meetings of the Board of
Trustees. Except as otherwise expressly provided by law, by the Articles of
Incorporation, or by these bylaws, he or she shall, in the name of the Corporation,
execute such deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts, checks, or other instruments which
may from time to tune be authorized by the Board of Trustees.
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SECTION 7. DUTIES OF VICE PRESIDNET

In the absence of the President, or in 1:he event of his or her inability or refusal to

act, the Vice President shall perform all the duties of the President, and when so

acting shall have all the powers of, and be subject to all the restriction on, the

President. The Vice President shall have other powers and perform such other duties

as may be prescribed by law, by the Articles of Incorporation, or by these Bylaws, or

as may be prescribed by the Board.

SECTION 8. DUTIES OF THE SECRETARY

The Secretary shall:

(a) Certify and keep at the principal office of the Corporation the original, or a copy

of these Bylaws as amended or otherwise altered to date.

(b) Keep at the principal office of the Corporation ox at such other place as the Baard

may determine, a book of minutes of all meetings of the Trustees, and if

applicable, meetings of committees of Trustees and of members, recording therein

the time and place of holding, whether regular or special, how called, how notice

thereof was given, the names of those present or represented at the meeting, and

the proceedings thereof.

(c) See that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these

Bylaws or as required by law.

(d) Be custodian of the records and of the seal of the corporation and affix the seal, as

authorized by law or the provisions of these Bylaws, to duly executed documents

of the Corporation.

(e) Keep at the principal office of the Corporation a miembership book, if the

Corporation has members, containing the name and address of each and any

members, and, in the case where any membership has been terminated, he or she

shall record such fact in the membership book together with the date on which

such membership ceased.

(~ Exhibit at all reasonable times to any Trustee of the Corporation, or to his or her

agent or attorney, on request therefore, the Bylaws, the membership book, and the

minutes of the proceedings of the Trustees of the Corporation.

In general, perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties

as may be required by law, by the Articles of Incorporation, or by these Bylaws, or which

may be assigned to him or her from time to time by the Board of Trustees.
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SECTION 9. DUTIES OF TREASURER

The Treasurer shall:

(a) Have charge and custody of, and be responsible fox, all funds and securities of the
Corporation, and deposit all such funds in the name of the Corporation in such
banks, trust companies, or other depositories as shall be selected by the Board of
Trustees.

(b) Receive, and give receipt for, monies due and payable to the Cozporation from
any source whatsoever.

(c) Disburse, or cause to be disbursed, the funds of the corporation as may be directed
by the Board of Trustees, taking proper vouchers for such disbursements.

(d) Keep and maintain adequate and correct accounts of the Corporation's properties
and business transactions, including accounts of its assets, liabilities, receipts,
disbursements, gains and losses.

(e) Exhibit at all reasonable time the books of account and financial records to any
Trustee of the Corporation, or to his or hex agent oz attorrxey, on request therefore.

(fl Render to the President and Trustees, whatever requested, an account of any or alI
of his ox her transactions as Treasurer and of the financial condition of the
Corporation.

(g) Prepare, or cause to be prepared, and certify, or cause to be certified, the financial
statements to be included in any required reports.

(h) In general, perform all duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such other
duties as may be required by law, by the Articles of Incorporation of the
Corporation, or by these Bylaws, oz which may be assigned to hirn or her from
time to time by the Board of Trustees.

SECTION 10. COMPENSATION

The salaries of the officers, if any, shall be fixed from time to time by resolution of the
Board of Trustees. In all cases, any salaries received by officers of this Corporation shall
be reasonable and given in return for services actually rendered to or fox the Corporation.

ARTICLE 5
COMMITTEES

SECTION 1. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
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The Board of Trustees may, by a majority vote of its membexs, designate a
Presidium consisting of three (3) Board members and may delegate to such comnnittee
the powers and authority of the Board in the n:ianagement of the business and affairs of
the Corporation to the extent permitted, and except as may otherwise be provided, by
provisions o£ law.

By a majority vote of its members, the Board may at any time revoke or modify
any or all of the Presidium's authority so delegated, increase or decrease but not below
two (2) the number of the members of the Presidium, and fill vacancies on the Presidium
from the members of the Board. The Presidium shall keep regular minutes of its
proceedings, cause them to be filed with the corporate record, and report the same to the
Board from time to time as the Board may require.

SECTION 2. OTHER COMMITEES

The standing cornrxizttees of the Board of Trustees shall include:

• The Baard of Governors
• Strategic and Long Range Planning Committee
• Tuition Committee
• Administration and Finance Committee
• Development Committee
• Nominating Committee ,
• Endowment Advisory Committee

The Board of Trustees may, by duly adopted resolution, create such other committees,
both standing and ad-hoc, as it deems necessary.

All such committees may consist of persons who are not also members o£ the
Board and shall act in an advisory capacity of the Board.

SECTION 3. MEETINGS AND ACTION OF COMMITTEES

Meeting and action of committees shall be governed by, noticed, held and taken
in accordance with the provisions o#'these Bylaws concerning meetings of the Board of
Trustees, which such changes in the context of such Bylaws provisions as axe necessary
to substitute the committee and its members except that the time for regular and special
meetings of committees may be fixed by resolution of the Board of Trustees ox by the
comnnittee. The Board of Trustees may also adopt rules and regulations pertaining to the
conduct of meetings of convnittees to the extent that such rules and regulations are not
inconsistent with these Bylaws.
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ARTICLE 6
EXECUTION OF INSTRUMENTS, DEPOSITS AND FUNDS

SECTION 1. EXECUTION OF INSTRUMENTS

The Board of Trustees, except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, may by
resolution authorize any officer or agent of the Corporation to enter into any contract or
execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation, and
such authority may be general or confined to specific instances. Unless so authorized, no
officer, agent, or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the Corporation by
any contract or engagement ox to pledge its credit or to render it liable monetarily for any
purpose or in any amount.

SECTION 2. CHECKS AND NOTES

Except as otherwise specifically determined by resolution of the Board of
Trustees, or as otherwise required by law, checks, drafts, promissory notes, orders for the
payment of money, and other evidence of indebtedness of the Corporation shall be signed
by the Treasurer and countersigned by the President of the Corporation.

SECTION 3. DEPOSITS

All funds of the Cozporation shall be deposited from time to tune to the credit of
the Corporation in such banks, tz-ust companies, or other depositories as the Board of
Trustees may select.

SECTION 4. GIFTS

The Board of Trustees may accept on behalf on behalf of the Corporation any
contribution, gift, bequest, ox devise for the nonprofit purposes of the Corporation.

ARTICLE 7
CORPORATE RECORDS, .REPORTS .AND SEAL

SECTION 1. MAINTENANCE OF COR.POR.ATE RECORDS

The Corporation shall keep at its principal office:

(a) Minutes of all meetings of Trustees, committees of the Board and, if this
Corporation has members, of all meetings o~members, indicating the time and
place of holding such meetings, whether regular or special, how called, the notice
given, and the names of those present and the proceedings thereof;
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(b) Adequate and correct books and
 records of account, including acco

unts of its

properties and business transactions an
d accounts of its assets, liabilities, 

receipts,

disbursements, gains, and losses;

(c) A record of its members, if any, indic
ating their names and addresses and, 

if

applicable, the class of membership held 
by each nne~nber and the termination

date of any membership;

(d) A copy of the Corporation's Articles 
of Incorporation and Bylaws as amend

ed to

date, which shall be open to inspection by
 the mennbers, if any, of the Corporat

ion

at all reasonable times during office hours.

SECTION 2. CORPORATE SEAL

The Board of Trustees may adopt, use, and 
at will alter, a corporate seal. Such

seal shall be kept at the principal office of 
the corporation. Failure to affix the seal

 to

corporate instruments, however, shall not affec
t the validity of any such instruments.

SECTION 3. TRUSTEES' INSPECTION RIG
HTS

Every Trustee shall have the absolute right at any 
reasonable time to inspect and

copy all books, records and documents of eve
ry kind and to inspect the physical

properties of the Corporation as may be requi
red under the Articles of Incorporation,

other provisions of these Bylaws, and provisions
 of law.

SECTION 4. RIGHT TO COPY AND MAKE E
XTRACTS

Any inspection under the provisions of this Artic
le may be made in person or by

agent or attorney and the right to inspection sha
ll include the right to copy and make

extracts.

SECTION 5. PERIODIC REPORT

The Board shalt cause any azulual or periodic report 
required under law to be

prepared and delivered to an office of this state or to
 the members, if any, of this

Corporation, to be so prepared and delivered within t
he time limits set by law.
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ARTICLE S
IRC 501(C)(3) TAX EXEMPTION PROVISIONS

SECTION 1. LIMITATIONS ON ACTIVITIES

No substantial part of the activities of this Corporation shall be the carrying on of
propaganda, or otherwise attempting to influence legislation (except as othez-wise
provided by Section 501(h) of the Internal Revenue Code), and this Corporation shall
not participate in, or intervene in (including the publishing or distribution of
statements), any political campaign on behalf of, or in opposition to, any candidate
for public office.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of these Bylaws, this Corporation shall not
carry on any activities not permitted to be carried on (a) by a corporation exempt
froze federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Cade, or (b)
by a corporation, contributions to which are deductible under Section 170(c)(2) of the
Internal Revenue Code.

SECTION 2. PROHIBITION AGAINST PRIVATE INUREMENT

No part of the net earnings of this corporation shall inure to the benefit of, or be
distributable to, its members, Trustees, officers, or other private persons, except that
the Corporation shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation
for services rendered and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of the
purpose of this Corporation.

SECTION 3. DISTRIBUTON OF ASSETS

Upon the dissolution of this Corporation, its assets remaining after payment, or
provision for payrrzent, of all debts and liabilities of this Cozporation shall be
distributed for one or more exempt purposes within the meaning of Section 501
(c)(3)of the Internal Revenue Code or shall be distributed to the federal government,
or to a state or local government, for a public purpose. Such Distribution shall be
rrzade in accordance with all applicable provisions of the law of this state.

SECTION 4. PRIVATE FOUNDATION REQUIREMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS

In any taxable year in which this Corporation is a private foundation as described
in Section 509 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code, the Corporation 1) shall distribute its
income for said period at such time and manner as not to subject it to tax under
Section 4942 of the Internal Revenue Code; 2) shall not engage in arty act of self-
dealing as defined in Section 4941 (d) of the Internal Revenue Code; 3) shall not
retain any excess business holdings as defined in Section 4943 (c) of the Internal
Revenue Code; 4) shall not make any investments in such manner as to subject the
Cozporation to tax under Section 4944 of the Internal Revenue Code; and 5) shall not
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make any taxable expenditures as defined in Section 4945 (d) of the Internal Revenue
Code.

ARTICLE 9
NONDISCRIMINATION

Beth Medrash Govoha shall maintain a nondiscriminatory adrn.issions policy and
shall at all times be in compliance with applicable federal, state and local regulations
in regard to admissions, accommodations, educational opportunity, student aid
policies and employment. Qualified men are admitted to Beth Medrash Govoha and
are uniformly accorded all rights, privileges and benefits without regard to race,
color, national or ethnic origin, ox denominational affiliation.

Beth Medrash Govoha shall maintain a policy of Equal Opportunity in
employment.

ARTICLE l.0
AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS

Except as may otherwise be specified under provisions of law, these Bylaws, or
any of there, nnay be altered, amended, oz repealed and new Bylaws adopted by a four-
fifths (4/5) approval of a quorum of the Board of Trustees.

ARTICLE 11
CONSTRUCTION AND TERMS

If there is any conflict between the provisions of these $ylaws and the Artzcles of
Incorporation of this Corporation, the provisions of the Articles of Incozporation shall
govern.

Should any of the provisions or portions of these Bylaws be held unenforceable or
invalid for any reason, the remaining provisions and portions of these Bylaws shall be
unaffected by such holding.

All references in these Bylaws to a section or sections of the Internal Revenue
Code shall be to such sections of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended from
time to time, or to corresponding provisions of any future federal tax code.
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ARTICLE 12
ADOPTION OF BYLAWS

I, Eliezer Kupennan, the undersigned, hereby certify that the foregoing Bylaws,
consisting of this page and thirteen (13) preceding pages, constitute the Bylaws of this
Corporation.

Dated this 26th day of December, 2012.

I~

Eliezer Kuperman
Secretary
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Department of the Treasury
tnt~rngl Revenue Serv~c~e,

To: ELI KUPERMAN

FAX Transm~ssian
Cover Sheet

Date: August 2~, 200$

Number of pages
including cover sheet: 2

Qrganization: BETH MEDRASH GOVOHA C~~ AMERICA

phone: 732-3fi7-1060

From; JAY GlBSON

Organizatiorf: Internal Revenue Service

Address: PO Box 12307 MIS i 112
Ogden, UT 84412

Phone: 801-62U-3217

Fax: ~Oy -~20-2132

Remarks:
i hope this helps vut in what you requested. If you have any more quest~ans feel free to

calf me.
Thanks,
Jay

Thle c~ommunlgtEa► is frttpnded for the sol@ use at me individual tp whpm ii Is addressed and may conmin IrttnrmaHon that
is pdvil@ged, Corttlde~ltfai end e~mpt from disclosure under applioeble 18w~ it th0 r@BdAt bf thEs c~mmmurtioalion is rsot the

intended recfp{ent a the employee or agUnt for dpllvering the commttt~ICatison tp Iha tmer~ded recipierik you are here
by

notified that any d'~semination, d'strihuiion, or Copying of this communication may be btriody Ar~~~ 
If you have

rec~i~red this communleatEon to ertor, please notify the sender irnmediatety by telephone call. arxf return the

commur katton at the address above via fhe united States Postal ServEce. 'It~ank you.

Revised 03-2x-06
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DEPARTMENT pF TH~'TREASURY
IiVTERNAL REVENUE S~RHIC~
Mail Stop 1712, RO Box 12307

dgden~ Uz 84412

rnx wr awn
GOVERA1MkNT' F,N'f1TfES

DIVi5IQ1a

BE`T'H MEDRA~H GOVOHA OF AMERICA
PO BOX 277
lAKEWOOD, NJ X8701

Employer Identification Number: 2f-063442
Tax Period(s); March 31, 2007

Forms): 990

Dear Sir or Madam:

nA~ o~ rHis n~o~ce:
Aususc zs, aaoe
CONTACT PERSOWID NUMBER:

Jay HGibson / 405285Sa11

CQNTACT T~C.EPtiONE NUMBERS:

Tolt Free y •enas7•zsot
Long distance 1-801~20~32i7

Thank you for your response to our request far information regarding a compliance
Check issue. We have considered your reply dated August 26, 20Q8 and have

concluded that your organization does not have to file Fo~rn 990 either by paper or

electronically.

It you have any questions about your exempt status or filing requirements, please cal!

TE/GE Customer Accounfi Services at (87'7) 829 - 5500.

To receive Exempt Organizaiian's F4 Update, a regular email newsletter with

{nformation fortax-exempt organizafions and tax practFtioners who represent them, go
to www.irs.goy/ea and ciicic on °EQ Update."

sincerely,

~~~~
Vicki L. Hansen
Acting Director, EO Examinations

Latter 4140 (CG) (Rev 6-2007)
Catalog Number 264471V

1 ~ ;_ - .r~
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BETH. MEDRASH GQVt)HA t~F ANIE~ttCA
b17 S~JCT'H~ STREET

~NKEWO~D; NEW 9ERSEY. 08701

August ~0, za~3

Wasser, Brettler, Klan &Lipstein, LLP

132 Nassau Street -Suite 300

New York, New York 10038

1Ne are providing this letter (n connection with your audi
t. of .the statement of financial position of

aeth Medrash Govohia af:America as of March 31, x013 
and the related stat~mants of actiulttes~

functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then e
nded for tha purpose of expressing. an opinio

n as

to whether the financial.statements present fairly, in 
all material respect, the financial position, change

s

in net assets, and cash flaws of Beth Medrash Govoha o
f America in conformity with U.5. generally

accepted accounting principles. We confrm that we are 
eesponsible for the fair presentation 1r~ the

financial statements of financial pos~lon, changes in net a
ssets, and cash flows in conformiry,with

generally accepted aCcount(ng principles. We'are also res
ponsible for adapting sound accounting

policies, ~5tablishing and maintaining efFectiveJntern~l con
trol over ~nar~cial report{ng, and preVenting

aad. detecting fraud.

We confirm, to the best ofi our know{edge and belief,
 as of date the fgElowing representations

made to you during your audit,

The tlnancia.! statements referred ho above are fairly pr
esented In r,,onformity with W.S.

generally .accepted accounting principles anti include all as
sets and`liabilities Lander the

Organization's control.

2. We have made available to you a!I -

a. financial records and related data #or all funds tinder the Ins
titution's control;

and all audit or relevant monitoring reports;: if any; received from 
funding sources,

b. Minutes.of meetings of the Board of directors, or summaries
 of actions .of recent

meetings #or ►tikiictt minutes have not yet bin prepared.

3. There have been no communications from- regulating agencies .concern(ng. non

compliance with, or deficiencies in, financial c~porting practices.

4. There are no material transactions that hive not been properly re
corded In the

accounting records underlying the financial statements.

5. 1Ne acknowledge our responsibility for the design and irnpfeme
ntatlon of programs and

controls to prevent and detect fraud.

6. We have na knowledge of any fraud ar suspected fraud ef
fecting the Organization

involving management or employees who have significant 
roles in the internal control,

ar others v~ihe~e the fraud could have a materiel effect on the fi
nancial statements.
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Wasser, Brattier, Klar &Lipstein, LLP

August 3~, 2013
Paae 2

7. We have no knowledge of any allegations,
af fraud or suspected Fraud afFecting Che

Organization received sn communications fro
m employees,.fvrmer employees, gtantars,

regulators, ar others.

8. Thy arganizatlon has no pans or intentions tha
t may materially affect the carrying value.

or classification of assets, liabilities, or net asse
t balances,

9. The following, ifany, have been properly r
ecorded or disclosed in the financial

statements:

a, Refatecl party transactions and related receivab
les or payables, including revenues,

expenses, purchases; loans; transfers, lasing 
arrangements, and guarantees,

b. .Arrangements with financial institutions inyo
lving .compensating balances or other

arrangements involving restrictions on cash balance
s; lines of credit, ar similar

arrangemenCs have been properly disclosed.

c. Guarantees, whether writCen or.aral, under whi
ch the organization is contingently

liable.

Ail accounfiing estimates that could be mareri~! t
o the financial sCatements,

including the key factors and significant assumpti
ons underlying those estimates;

end we beUeve the estimates are reasonable in t
he circumstances.

10, There are nn.

a. Violations or possible violakions of laws and regulak
ions and provisians.of contracks

and grant agreements whose effects shoutd be consid
ered for disclosure in the

financial statements, ~s a basis for recording a loss cont
ingency, or for reporting

on non compliance, 
'

b. Unasserted. claims or assessmenks that our lawyer has 
advised ua are probable'of

assertion and must be disclosed.,

c.. Other liabilities or gain or Ipss contingencies that are 
required to be accrued or

disclosed.

d. Transfers or. borrowings that were not properly authoriz
ed and approved, or

uncolle~tibl~ loans that. have not been properly
 reflecked in the financial statements

or disclosed to you,

e. Designations of nit assets disclosed to you that w
ere nat properly authorized end

approved, or reclassifications of net assets that have -no
t been properly refilected in

the financial statements,
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Wasser, Brettler, .Klar &Lipstein, LLP

August 3b, 2013
Paae 3

ii. Beth Medrash Govoha of America is an exe
mpt brganiaation underSectlon 541(

c)(3) of

the Internal Revenue Code, Any activities that
 would jeopardize the organization's 

tax-

exemptstatus; of which we are aware, and' al
l activities subject to tax on unrelated

business Encome or excise or other taxi hav
e been disclosed to you..All required filing

s

witli tax authorities are up to date.

12. The Organization has satisfactory title to aU Ow
ned assets, and there are no Ilen5 or

.encumbrances on such assets nor has any a
sst been pledged except as made known to

you.

r3. We are responslbfe for compf~arfce with the 
regulations and provfslons of contracts and

grant agreements applicable to us; and.we,h
ave identifeci .and disclosed to you all

regulations and provisions of'contracCs and grant
 agreements that we believe have a direc

t

and material effecC on the det~rmination of fina
ncial statement amounts,

19. We have complied with all restrictions on resourc
es (including donor. restrictions), and aH

aspects of oontractuai and grant agreemen
ts that would have a material effect on the

financial statements in the event of nonWmpfiance.
 7hls includes complying with donor

requirements to maintain ~ specific asseC compositi
on necessary to.satl5fy their restdctiorts,

1S. We have iden#ified aA ~~equnting estimakes thafi cou
ld be material to.the financial

. statements, incfudEng the key factors and si~nlficant 
assumptions underlying those

estimates,. and we believe the estimates-.and the 
bass for allocation of indirect casts.by

function are reasonable in the circumstances..

1~. There are no estimates that may be subject to a 
material change in the near term khat

have not been properly disclosed in the :finan
cial statements. ifVe understand that near

term means:the period within one year of the date 
of khe financial stateri~tents: Tn addition,

we have no knowledge of concentrations existing
 at the date of the.financial statements

that make. the organization vulnerable to the risk of
 anear-term. severe, impacf that have

nAt been properly disclosed In the financial statements;

17. As part of your:audit, you have reviewed and apprflved, t
hose Hnat~aaf skatements and

related notes that w~ prepared and believe they are 
adequately supported by the books

and records of the organization,

1~. There have been no communications from regulatory agen
cies concerning non compliance

with, or deficiencies 'sn, financial reporting practices.

19. To the best of our knowledge and belief; no events have occ
urred subsequent to the

statement of financia4 position date and through the d
ate of this letter that would require.

adjustment to or disclosure in the aforementioned financia
l statements,
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Wasser, Brattier, Klar &Lipstein; LLP
August 3Q, 201
Page 4. '

20. Afl Copies of corporate records, reports and board minutes submitted Co you a"re 
true.

copies of tt~e actual records, reports end minutes,

NAME

'~.~.r

SIGiVATURE

TITI.~
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BETH MEDRASH GOVOHA OF AMERICA AND SUBSIDIARY
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BETH MEDRASH GOVOHA OF AMERICA AND SUBSIDIARY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BETH MEDRASH GOVOHA OF AMERICA AND SUBSIDIARY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BETH MEDRASH GOVOHA OF AMERICA AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2013

 

 

 

management's estimate of future collections.

-11-

 

JA0292



BETH MEDRASH GOVOHA OF AMERICA AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2013

-12-

 

JA0293



BETH MEDRASH GOVOHA OF AMERICA AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2013

 

 

 

 

JA0294



BETH MEDRASH GOVOHA OF AMERICA AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2013
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BETH MEDRASH GOVOHA OF AMERICA AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2013

NOTE 11 -PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

In October 2012 one of the buildings was demolished to be able to construct a new building on

that site, The remaining value of that building was $338,555, which was treated as depreciation expense.

The unamortized value of leasehold improvements made to the 1771 Holding Group LLC property

was written off (see Note 24).

In addition to the fixed assets included in the statement of financial position, the Institution also

holds nominal title to certain properties used to house faculty and students. Such properties are not

included as assets of the Institution nor are the mortgage loans on these properties included as liabilities.

The estimated fair market value of such properties is in excess of the mortgage liabilities.

NOTE 12 -LOANS PAYABLE

This is comprised of several non interest bearing loans and obligations, either payable on

demand, or having a maturity date of less than three years, as follows:

Date of Loan Due Date Amount

March, 2011
March, 2012
March, 2013
March, 2013

Total

NOTE 13 -DEPOSITS AND ESCROWS PAYABLE

This is comprised of the following:
TAG escrow
Tenant security deposits
Other deposits

Tota

April, 2013 $ 317,759
Demand 140,000

April, 2015 1,900,000
April, 2015 2,125,000

$ 235,414
429,879

6,940

Tenant security deposits are either held in an escrow bank account, or by the Institution.

-17-
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BETH MEDRASH GOVOHA OF AMERICA AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BETH MEDRASH GOVOHA OF AMERICA AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2013
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BETH MEDRASH GOVOHA OF AMERICA AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BETH MEDRASH GOVOHA OF AMERICA,AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2013
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PART B

PROJECT DUE DILIGENCE REQUEST

AND TAX QUESTIONNAIRE

BETH MEDR.A.SH GOVOHA
006-01 CONSTRUCTION OF LIBRARY AND

RESEARCH CENTER
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College Beth Medrash Govoha of America

Project 006-01 Construction of Library and Research Center

17:]x.

PROJECT DUE DILIGENCE REQUEST
AND

TAX QUESTIONNAIRE

Each Institution must also provide a complete set of responses to Part B for each

Project that was awarded a Grant (vv/o regard to funding by each Program). Provide 1

original and copies on 4 CDs or flash drives.

Information with Respect to the Project:

i. Name of the College and the Project, as shown in the chart accompanying the

cover memo.

Name of the College: Beth Medrash Govoha of America

Name of the Project: 006-01 Construction of Library and Research Center

ii. If there have been any changes in the proposed sources and uses of Grant

amounts and other moneys for the Project since the submission of your

application, please complete Schedule A. N/A

iii. Other than as provided in your application, resolutions of the Board of

Directors/Trustees of the Grantee (i) approving the Project, (ii) approving any

reimbursements from Bond proceeds and (iii) authorizing ar~y bridge or

interim loans. NOTE: Should the Grantee wzsh to reimburse itself from Grant

proceeds for expenditures incurred after April 29, 2013 and prior to the date

the Bonds are issued, there must be a "reimbursement resolution" adopted by

the Authority, the State or the Crrantee reflecting such intent not later than 60

days after the date of the expenditures to be reimbursed. The Authority

adopted such resolutions on July 23, 2013. Please provide any earlier ones

adopted by the Grantee.

Please see Attachment I for a "Reimbursement Resolution" which will be

considered for approval at Beth Medrash Govoha's Board of Trustees meeting

this Monday, October 28, 2013. We will forward the approved resolution

under separate cover after the meeting.

iv. Provide any changes regarding applicable State and municipal approvals,

permits, planning, zoning or environnnental matters from those described in

your application. N/A

10/25/13 2:25PM B_1
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College Beth Medrash Govoha of America

Project 006-01 Construction of Library and Research Center

TAX
QUESTIONNAIRE

This questionnaire attempts to address many of the issues relating to the tax

exenription of bonds issued to finance facilities for Public Colleges and Private

Colleges that are 501(c)(3) organizations. Some of the questions will apply to all

Colleges and some will apply to only to Public Colleges or Private Colleges. The

questionnaire is not exhaustive however, and further information may be required from

you concerning areas covered by the questionnaire, issues raised by your responses to

the questionnaire, or other matters relating to the tax exemption of the Bonds. Your

responses in this questionnaire will form the basis of tax certificates which may be

required by Bond Counsel..

The following general tax requirements apply in order for Projects of all

Colleges to qualify:

• Certain private business use and payment limitations

• Management or service contracts may not result in "private business

use" (described herein)
• Research contracts generally may not result in "private business use"

(described herein)
• Average maturity of Bonds cannot exceed 120% of average life of

financed assets
• Debt service cannot be Federally guaranteed.

• Arbitrage limitations, including yield restrictions and rebate

requirements.
• IRS Reporting Requirements on Form 8038 or Form 8038-G

The following general tax requirements apply in order for Projects of Public

Colleges to qualify:

• Grantee/user must be a governmental entity.
• Not more than 10% of the Grant financed Project may be used by non-

State or local governmental, nonprofit or for-profit entities. If the use is

unrelated or disproportionate to the College use, this limit is reduced to

5%. Thus use by fox-profit entities, nonprofit or the US Government

must be closely scrutinized.

The following general tax requirements apply in order for Projects o£ Private

Colleges to qualify:

]0/25/]3 2:25PM B-2
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College Beth Medrash Govoha of America

Project 006-01 Construction of Library and Research Center

• Grantee/user must be a 501(c)(3) organization.

• All bond financed property must be owned by a governmental entity or

501(c)(3) organization.
• Not more than 5% of the Grant Financed Project) may be used by

nongovernmental ox for-profit entities. Thus use by for-profit entities or

the US Government must be closely scrutinized.

• Costs of issuance financed by Bands is limited to 2% of proceeds of the

Bonds; balance must be paid by Grantee.
• $150 million limit for tax exempt bonds for "test period beneficiaries"

unless Project is a new capital project.
• TEFRA Approval required by Goverrnor after public hearing, preceded

by newspaper publication of a notice of hearing at least 14 days in

advance.

In the event that additional space is needed for any responses, please feel free

to elaborate on separate sheets which you attach to the questionnaire.

I. Use of Bond Proceeds

Private Business Use/Payments

Public Colleges

The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") includes

numerous requirements relating to the tax exemption of bonds used to finance facilities

for Public Colleges. One of the requirements necessary to establish that bonds are

governmental bands is that no more than 10% of the proceeds of the bonds are to be

used for any "private business use." Not more that 10% or of the debt service on the

Bonds can be payable by or secured by property used by private business users. If the

private business use is unrelated or disproportionate to the governmental use, these

limits are reduced to 5%.

"Private business use" includes any use directly ox indirectly in a trade or

business carried on by any person other than a governmental entity or use by the Public

College in an activity that is unrelated to its educational activities. A private use can

occur pursuant to a lease, a special arrangement, a management or services contract,

certain research arrangements or by any arrangement where a private business is using

the financed property in a manner different than the general public. For these

purposes, any use by a person other than a natural person is treated as a use in trade or

10/25/13 225PM B_3
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College Beth Medrash Govoha of America

Project 006-01 Construction of Library and Research Centex

business. Use, however, as a member of the general public is not taken
 into account.

"Governmental Unit" means any state or political subdivisions thereof (
i.e., ~a state or

division of state with a substantial amount of sovereign powers) or instrument
ality of a

state and does not include the United States or any agency or instrumentality 
of the

United States. Typical arrangements that may result in private business use
 for a

college include food service and bookstore contracts, parking management 
contracts,

research contracts, rental or lease of facilities and summer camp programs 
which are

run by unaffiliated entities. Private business use can also arise in the case of a 
project

that is a leasehold improvement on land owned by a nongovernmental entity.

Private Colleges

Section 145 of the Code provides numerous additional requirements relating
 to

the tax exemption of bonds used to finance facilities for Private Colleges. 
Bonds

which satisfy the requirements of Section 145 of the Code shall be referred 
to as

"Qualified 501(c)(3) Bonds". One of the requirements necessary to esta
blish that

bonds are Qualified 501(c)(3) Bonds is that no more than 5% of the "net proceeds" 
of

the bonds are to be used fox any "private business use."

In the context of Qualified 501(c)(3) Bonds, net proceeds used in any private

business use includes costs of issuance of the bonds and any use directly or indirectly

in a trade or business carried on by any person other than an "Exempt Person".

Exempt Person means (i) a Governmental Unit, or (ii) a 501(c)(3) organization (to the

extent used in an activity which does not constitute an "unrelated trade or business"

("Unrelated Trade ox Business") determined by applying Section 512(a) of the Code).

Private business use includes any lease, management or service contract and certain

other rights given to anon-Exempt Person. For these purposes, any use by a person

other than a natural person is treated as a use in trade or business. Use, however, as a

member of the general public is not taken into account. "Governmental Unit" means

any state or political subdivisions thereof (i.e., a state or division of state with a

substantial amount of sovereign powers) or instrumentality of a state and does not

include the United States or any agency ox instrumentality of the United States. Typical

uses that must be considered by a college include food service and bookstore contracts,

parking management contracts and summer camp contracts.

The questions which follow in this section axe designed to elicit information

regarding compliance with the private use and certain related limitations.

10/25/13 225PM B_4
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College Beth Medrash Govoha of Annerica

Project 006-01 Construction of Libraryand Research Center

All Colleges

1. Will there be any private business use of the Project or a direct or indirect

loan or grant of the proceeds of the Grant to any other person or entity

(including, in the case of Public Colleges, a nonprofit corporation) at any

tirr~e while the Bonds are outstanding?

❑Yes QNo

If yes, please explain (attach documents, if necessary). Tf there is any special

entitlement (e.g., right to use any portion of the Pxoject different from the

general public) that "may" result in a private business use, please describe it.

2. Are the facilities being financed expected to be used by the College during

the entire time period the Bonds may be outstanding? (CIF — 30 years, HEFT

—15 years, HETI ---15 yeaz~s, ELF — 10 years and GO — 35 years)

L~JYes ❑No

If no, please explain.

3. To the extent any facilities will be made available on a rental basis or

constitute a trade or business activity, please explain the scope of such

activities and the amount of such uses by individuals ox other entities. If any

type of restaurant facilities, arenas, cafeterias or bookstores will be financed,

please explain the anticipated use by employees, patrons and others. N/A

4. Will the name of any private business be used in connection with any part of

the Project (i.e., are naming rights being provided in exchange for any payment

or contribution)? ❑Yes C~(No. If yes, describe in detail and provide any

relevant agreements.

10/25/13 225PM B-S
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College Beth Medxash Govoha of America

Project 006-01 Construction of Library and Research Center

5. Will any portion of the Project be leased by the Public College or be the 
subject

of a possessory interest or license, formal or infozmal, given by t
he Publzc

College? ❑Yes QNo.

6. Will there be any non-college summer uses of the Project (i.e, sports camps)
?

❑Yes QNo. If yes, please describe.

7. Are all those, who are ox will be lessees, licensees, or persons with a possessory

interest in the Project, a State or Local Governmental Unit (arzd in the case o
f

Private Colleges, a 501(c)(3) corporation which is using the Project for i
ts

charitable purpose)? QYes ❑No If no, please describe.
BMG is the owner of the Project. There will be no lessees or licensees.

8. If the Project includes parking facilities, is the general public, not on Colleg
e

business, permitted to use the parking Facility? OYes ❑No. N/A

Are long term parking licenses to be provided? ❑Yes ❑No. If yes, please

explain the nature of the licenses and their permitted duration and terms N/A

Does the College manage the parking facilities? Yes ❑No. Please provide a

copy of any management contracts. N/A

9. Will any portion of the Project serve persons other than students, visitors or

employees of the College? ❑Yes I~JNo. If yes, please discuss.

Other than members of the public, who are welcome to visit and use our

facilities, no portion of fihe project will serve anyone other than students,

employees and visitors.

10. Will any portion of the Project include privately owned solar panels, cell

towers or be subject to a power purchase agreement of any type?

❑Yes QNo. If yes, please discuss.

11. Will any portion of the Project (i.e., bookstore, food service, parking) (i) be

managed by a person other than the College and its employees or (ii) be a

subject to service contracts ~~ith a third party? ❑Yes QNo. If no, please

skip to question 12. Otherwise, please provide a copy of the contracts.

10/25/l3 225PM B-6
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College Beth Medrash Govoha of America

Project 006-01 Construction of Libxary and Research Center

12 Axe there or will there be any cooperative research agreements with, or funded

by, non-Exempt Persons which will involve use of any portion of the Project?

❑Yes QNo. If yes, describe in detail and attach a copy of any existing

or pxoposed contract.

13. Will there be any research agreements if reseaxch is conducted on the premises

of any portion of the Project facilities. ❑Yes QNo. If no, skip to next

question. If there are any research. contracts with a nongovernmental entity,

please provide copies thereof

14. Is any portion of the Project an "output-type facility" (e.g., utility)?

❑Yes QNo. If yes, please describe and provide copies of any contracts

Will any of the output from the facility be used to service facilities used

in the trade or business of persons other than Exempt Person?

❑Yes ❑No. N/A

Will any of the output from such facility be sold? ❑Yes ❑No. If so,

please identify the purchasers) and supply the purchase contract(s). N/A

In the event any output froze such facility will be sold, were any other

tax-exempt obligations used to finance such facility? OYes ❑No. If so, please

indicate the aggregate principal amount of such obligations and the issuer of

such obligations. N/A

Was ar~y of the property nongovernnnental output property (i.e.

previously owned by a nongovernmental person) ❑Yes ❑No. N/A

15. Will any of the proceeds of the Bonds be loaned or granted to any person or

entity by the College? ❑Yes QNo. If yes, please identify.

16. Is there or will there be any current or proposed fundraising activities expected

with respect to any portion of the Project? ❑Yes C~1 No. If yes, please provide
copies of all solicitation materials, including a sample donor card/letter, and

indicate the goals and expectations of the fundraising campaign.

10/25/]3 2:25PM B-7
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College Beth Medrash Govoha of Amexica

Project 006-01 Construction of LibrarX and Research Center

Private Colleges Only

1. TEFRA -Please indicate the specific street address of the Project (or lots and

blocks or near by streets, if there are no street addresses).

lth Street

Lakewood NJ 08701

2. Will any portion of the Project be used by the Grantee in any activity

constituting an Unrelated Trade of Business? ❑Yes Q No. If yes, please

describe. (Note: the lack of "unrelated business" taxable income from an

activity by virtue of the definitions ox modifications to income contained in

Section 512 of the Code is not determinative of whether an Unrelated Trade or

Business activity is being carried on within the meaning of Section 513 of the

Code).

3. Will any portion of the Grant be used to provide ar~y airplane, slcy box, or other

luxury box, faczlity used primarily for gambling, or store the principal purpose

of which is the sale of alcoholic beverages for consumption off premises?
❑Yes Q No. If yes, describe in detail.

4. Will any portion of the Project be used to provide residential rental housing?

❑Yes QNo. If yes, please discuss in detail and describe the scope of

facilities offered within such housing.

Will such housing be available to the general public? ❑Yes ❑No. N/A

Is the housing new ox existing? ❑New ❑Existing N/A

5. Will there be any religious use o£ or religious instruction in any of the Project
facilities? ❑Yes QNo. If yes, please explain.

10/25/]3 2;33PM B_g
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College Beth Medrash Govoha of America

Project 006-01 Construction of Library and Research Center

6. $150 Million Limitation

Another requirement imposed under Section 145 of the Code for certain bonds

to be Qualified 501(c)(3) Bonds is compliance with the $150 million limitation.

The $150 million limitation restricts the amount of tax-exempt bonds

outstanding at any one time which may be issued for the benefit of any

501(c)(3) organization or related persons to $150 million excluding bonds

issued after August 5, 1997, as part of an issue 95% or more of the proceeds of

which are used to finance capital expenditures incurred after such date.

Will 95% or more of the proceeds of the Grant be used to finance capital

expenditures?

QYes ❑No.

7. What happens to the assets of the Grantee upon its dissolution?

As per the bylaws, in the event of the dissolution of this Corporation, its assets

remaining after payment, or provision for payment, of all debts and liabilities

of this Corporation shall be distributed for one or more exempt

purposes within the meaning of Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue

Code, or shall be distributed to the federal government, or to a state or local

government, fora public purpose. Such Distribution shall be made in

accordance with all applicable provisions of the law of this State.

8. Are the year-end excesses of revenues over expenses of the Grantee used for

future operations? L~f Yes ❑No. If not, for what purpose are such funds

used?

II. Expected Economic Life of the Financed Projects and its Components

Please provide the expected economic life of the components of the Project.

being financed with the proceeds of the Grant on Schedule B. Please see attached

Schedule B.

10!25/13 225PM B-9
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College Beth Medrash Govoha of America

Project 006-01 Construction of Library and Research Center

III. Arbitrage Limitations

A. General

1. Have binding contracts obligating the expenditure in excess of 5% of the

Grant been entered into by the Grantee or will such contracts be entered

into by the Grantee within 6 months of October 1, 2013, to commence

construction ox acquisition of the portion of the Project financed with the

Grant?

QYes ❑No. If yes, date met or expected to be met.

Binding contracts obligating the expenditure in excess of S% of the grant

are expected to be entered into by the Grantee within 2-3 months of

project funding, and no more than six months. We can provide date

expected as soon as we are informed by the State as to the date of

project funding.

2. Has or will construction ox acquisition of the portion of the Pxoject

financed with the Grant commence by the date of funding?

❑Yes QNo. If no, when will it occur?

Construction is expected to commence within 2-3 months of project

funding, and no more than six months.

3. When do you expect the portion of the Project funded with the proceeds of

the Grant to be completed?

16-18 months from the date of funding.

Please update the drawdown schedule of the proceeds of the Grant to

reflect any changes from the schedule you previously provided in your

application (please note that another updated schedule may be required in

conjunction with the sale of EFA and/or state bonds in the future). N/A

❑Yes ❑No.

10/25/13 225PM B- ~ O
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College Beth Medrash Govoha of America

Project 006-01 Constzuction of Library and Research Center

4. Will all costs of the Project constitute capital expenditures for federal

inconne tax purposes?

QYes ~No. If no, please discuss.

5. Does any portion of the Project constitute "investm.ent type" property, i.e.

property held as a passive vehicle for the production of income?

❑Yes QNo. If yes, please explain.

6. Will the proceeds of the Grant or investment earnings thereon be used as a

substitute for (i) any donations which were raised for any portion of the

Project, or (ii) any other funds which were earmarked for the construction

or acquisition of any portion of the Project? ❑Yes C✓(No. If yes,

please discuss. N//A

If the answer above was yes, will any of the replaced funds be invested?

OYes ❑No. If yes, please discuss. N/A

7. Do you anticipate the sale of any governmental obligations for your

institution between now and June 2014?

❑Yes C~fNo. 'If yes, please discuss.

B. Reimbursement Bonds

The Grantees may spend their own money on the Project from their own. non
bond financed funds (the "Costs of the Project") after adoption of a reimbursement
resolution or some other declaration of intent but prior to the date of issue of the Bonds
with the expectation of being reimbursed from the proceeds thereof

Do you expect to be reimbursed from proceeds of the Bonds for expenditures

previously paid by you from other moneys?

C1Yes ❑No

10/25/13 225PM 
B-~ 1
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College Beth Medrash Govoha of America
Project 006-01 Constzuction of Library and Research Center

If yes, please continue. If no, skip to the next category.

ALL OF THE FOLLOWING REQUIREMENTS MUST BE SATISFIED FOR

THE PROCEEDS TO BE DEEMED SPENT ON THE DATE OF THE

REIMBURSEMENT. REIMBURSEMENT INFORMATION MUST BE UPDATED

AS OF EACH CLOSING DATE.

(a) All allocations of the proceeds of the Bonds to the

reimbursement of expenditures for Costs of the Project incurred prior to the

issuance o:f the Bonds must satisfy the criteria set forth in either or a

combination of clauses (i), (ii), or (iii) (Please check box next to critexia that

apply):

Q (i) The Costs of the Project to be reimbursed were incurred

by the Grantee either aftex declarations of official intent

by the Crrantee on or after April 29, 2013 (the date that

the Secretary of Higher Education of New Jersey (the
"Secretary") certified the list of approved Projects and

award amounts) or incuxred after such date and paid by

the Grantee after May 24, 2013 (the date that is 60 days

before the date of the Authority's reimbursement
resolutions).

D (ii) The Costs of the Project to be reimbursed were incurred
on ox after April 29, 2013 and paid by the Grantee for
"preliminary expenditures", including architectural,
engineering, surveying, soil testing, reimbursement bond
issuance and similax costs that were incurred prior to
commencement of construction, rehabilitation or
acquisition of the Project, which do not exceed 20
percent of the issue price of the Bonds that finances the
Project, other than land acquisition, site preparation and
similar costs incident to the commencement of
construction; ox

Q (iii) The Costs of the Project to be reimbursed were incurred
on or after April 29, 2013 and represent (1) costs of
issuance of any bond or note or (2) an amount not in
excess of the lesser of $100,000 or 5% of the proceeds of
the issue.

10/25/13 225PM B^12
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College Beth Medrash Govoha of America
Project 006-01 Construction of Library and Research Center

(b) On the dates of the Declarations of Official Intent, such

Declarations of Official Intent to reimburse expenditures were "reasonable".

(c) Except for those expenditures described in paragraph (a)(ii) and

(iii) above (i.e, preliminary and de minimis expenditures), all allocations of the

proceeds of the Bonds to the reimbursement of expenditures fox Costs of the
Project made pxior to the issuance of the Bonds i.e., the closing fox tine Bonds

and the reimbursement allocation reflected on the issuer's books and records

will occur not later than 1 S months after the latex of (i) the date on which the

expenditure was paid, or (ii) the date on which the property was placed in

service or abandoned, and in no event more than 3 years after the original

expenditure was made.

(d) All allocations of the proceeds of the Bonds to the

reimbursement of expenditures for Costs of the Project made prior to the

issuance of the Bonds are expendituxes which were capital expenditures.

(e) No action or inaction of the issuer with respect to any allocation
of the proceeds of the Bonds to the reimbursement of expenditures for Costs of

the Project is or will be an abusive arbitrage device or to avoid arbitrage
restrictions ox other restrictions of the Code.

(~ The proceeds of the Bonds allocated to the reimbursement of
expenditures will n.ot, but for the allocation, be used directly ox indirectly
within 1 year of the date of the reimbursement allocation, to create
"replacement proceeds" with respect to any obligation (other than amounts
deposited to a bona f de debt service fund).

The foregoing rules focus on the date of the prior expenditure from the
Grantee's own funds, not from another financing. The official intent may be several
years old, but if the expenditure was incurred subsequent to or rzo earlier than 60 days
prior to the Declaration of Official Intent but within the 1$ month or 3 year period, it
may be reimbursable. An analysis of the expenditure date and placed in service date is
needed. (Please use the Reimbursement Schedule on Schedule C attached to complete
infozmation necessary for us to make the determination.) Any expenditures that fall
withizz any of the exceptions, such as preliminary expenditures (20% limitation), de
minimis expenditures (maximum of $100,000 per issue) and costs of issuance would
be added to the expenditures that meet the nzles. Any amounts that cannot be
reimbursed under these rules will be considered to be unspent proceeds until they are
otherwise allocated to an expenditure (i.e., spent on a future capital project) under the
arbitrage rules. Please see attached Schedule C.

10/25/13 225PM B-13
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College Beth Medrash Govoha of America

Project 006-01 Construction of Library and Research Center

If the allocation of Bonds is treated as a reimbursement under state law, but

fails the tax requirements (i.e., the proceeds are not deemed spent), the College will

still have unspent proceeds that will ultimately be subject to yield limitations and that

may be subject to rebate until spent.

Reimbursed Costs Paid with Funds Not Debt Financed

1. Axe Bond proceeds or projected investment earnings to be used to

reimburse the Grantee or any related party for any costs of the Project

paid by the Grantee or an affiliate prior to the issuance of the proposed

bonds? QYes ❑No.

2. Were any such costs of the Project to be reimbursed paid with equity of

the Grantee or an affiliate (and not f nanced with taxable debt)?

QYes ONo. If yes, please answer the questions below with respect to

such costs.

(a) Was a declaration of official intent of the Grantee, in accordance

with Treasury Regulations Section 1.150-2, made prior to or within 60

days following payment of such costs? C✓fYes ❑No. If yes, please
attach it.

As discussed above, please see Attachment I for a "Reimbursement

Resolution" which will be considered for approval at Beth Medrash

Govoha's Board of Trustees meeting this Monday, October 28, 2013.

We will forward the approved resolution under separate cover after

the meeting.

(b) How will the proceeds of the Bonds used to reimburse the Grantee

or affiliate for Project costs be used?

The portion of bond proceeds attributable to reimbursable expenses

will be used to reimburse BMG for the qualifying, reimbursable costs

incurred as permitted before funding of the bond.

10/25/13 2:25PM B-14
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College Beth Medrash Govoha of America

Project 006-01 Construction of Librar~d Research Center

Financing of Taxable Debt Used to Reimburse Costs

(a) Are the proceeds of the Bonds to be used to repay any taxable

debt of the Grantee? ❑Yes QNo.

If yes, describe principal amount of loan, date of borrowing and

purpose,

(b) Was a declaration of official intent of the Grantee, in accordance

with Treasury Regulations Section 1.150-2, made prior to or within 60

days following payment of such costs? ❑Yes ONo. If yes, please

attach it. N/A

(c) Were all proceeds of the taxable debt used for solely for costs of

the Project which were paid after issuance of the taxable debt and after

April 29, 2013? Any amounts paid for interest or costs of issuance

cannot be reimbursed. DYes ❑No. N/A

If no, so that proceeds of the taxable debt were used in whole or in part

to reimburse the Grantee for costs of the Project paid prior to the

issuance of the taxable debt, please describe the date such costs were

first paid and overall amounts.

(d) How were the reimbursed amounts used by the Grantee? N/A

IV. Fornn 803$ Requirements —Private Colleges

In order fox governmental obligations to be tax-exempt, a Form 8038 ox 8038-
Gmust be completed by the issuer and filed with the Internal Revenue Service within
the prescribed time period. The questions below are designed to facilitate the

completion of Fozm 8038 with respect to the proposed Bonds for Private Colleges.

Responses to the questions below should be completed prior to the issuance of the

proposed bonds.

10/25/13 225PM 
B-~ 5

 

JA0320



College Beth Medrash Govoha of America
Project 006-01 Construction of Library and Research Cuter

1. Please indicate below the North American. Industrial Classification
System Codes) (previously Standard Industrial Classifications (SIC)) for the facilities
financed with the proceeds of the Bonds.

NAILS Code 611310

2. Please classify on Schedule D the costs of the portion of the Project
financed with the proceeds of the Grant.

Please see attached Schedule D.

10/25/13 225PM B-16
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College Beth Medrash Govoha of America
Project 006-01 Construction of Library and Research Center

The answers and information provided in response to this questionnaire are, to
the best of my knowledge and belief, true, correct, and complete. I understand that
Bond Counsel, the Authority and the State will rely on the answers and information
provided herein for the purposes set forth above.

Beth Medrash G o of America
College Name

Date: October 23, 2013 By:
Name Aaron tier
Title Chief Executive Officer

10/23/13 11:42AM B' ~ 6
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B~~rx .~D~~SH ~ovox~___ ---__
~ a K E w o o v

RESOLUTION OF
THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
OF BETH MEDRASH GOVOHA

DECLARING ITS INTENTION TO REIMBURSE ITSELF FROM THE PROCEEDS OF ONE

OR MORE TAX-EXEMPT FINANCINGS FOR CERTAIN EXPENDITURES MADE

AND/OR TO BE MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION

AND EQUIPPING OF CERTAIN CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

WHEREAS, Beth Medrash Govoha (the "Borrower") is an Institution of Highex

Education and SO1(c)3 Cozporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New

Jersey; and

WHEREAS, by a resolution dated March 7, 2013 ("Original Resolution"), the Borrower

approved of the costs of a "Project" consisting of the new construction. of a Library and Research

Center building at 42S 11th Street, Lakewood, NJ (with such costs including, but not limited to,

already expended pre-construction costs) and authorized the undertaking, financing and

implementation of the Project in a maxinnum aggregate amount not to exceed $7,800,000, all or

any portion of which would be financed through the Building Our Future Bond Act, (P.L. 2012,

c. 41) (the "GO Bond Act"); and

WHEREAS, Borrower has applied for a grant of funds from the State of New Jersey,
which funds are anticipated to be obtained by the State of New Jersey through the issuance of

certain tax-exempt bonds; and

WHEREAS, on July 23, 2013 the New Jexsey Educational Facilities Authority
("Authority") adopted a reimbursement resolution authorizing the reimbursement of

expenditures incurred not earlier than 60 days prior to that date; and

WHEREAS, the Borrower has paid, and will pay from its ovcm funds, on and after the
date hereof, certain expenditures (the "Expenditures") in connection with the Project; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Borrower (the "Board") has determined that the
money previously advanced, including those monies advanced no more than 60 days prior to the
date hereof, and to be advanced on and after the date hereof to pay the Expenditures are available
only fox a temporazy period ar~d it is necessary to reimburse the Borrowex for the Expenditures
from the proceeds of one or more issues oftax-exempt bonds (the "Bonds"); and

&ren Center Officet7 8~ 7 SIXTH STREET, l.~Kew000, NJ 08701 TES 732.367.1080 FnX 732,730.0324
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WHEREAS, to the extent that expenditures have been incurred prior to August 28, 2013,

nothing herein shall prevent the Borrower from seeking reimbursement pursuant any other

authority which may permit reimbursezxzent for expenditures arising earlier than August 28,

2013, including those that may be authorized pursuant to the general reimbursement resolution

adopted by the Authority on or about July 23, 2013; provided, however that such reimbursement

for expenditures arising earlier than August 28, 2013 are permitted by the Internal Revenue Code

of 1986, as amended, and shall not adversely affect the tax-exempt status of the Bonds.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD AS FOLLOWS:

Section 7. The Board hereby declares the Borrower's intent, consistent with the March 7,

2013 Original Resolution, to reinnburse the Borrower with the proceeds of the Bonds for the

Expenditures with respect to the Project made on and after August 28, 2013, which date is no

more than 60 days prior to the date hereof, however, nothing herein shall prevent the Borrower

from seeking reimbursement pursuant any other authority which may permit reirnbursernent for

expenditures arising earlier than August 28, 2013 including those that may be authorized

pursuant to the general reimbursement resolution adopted by the Authority on or about July 23,

2013; provided, however that such reimbursement for expenditures arising earlier than August

28, 2013 are permitted by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and shall not

adversely affect the tax-exempt status of the Bonds. The Borrower reasonably expects on the

date hereof that it will reimburse the Expenditures with the proceeds of the Bonds.

Section 2. Each Expenditure was and will be (a) of a type properly chargeable to capital

account under general federal income tax principles (determined in each case as of the date of the

Expenditure) and (b) complies with all applicable regulations of the State of New Jersey.

Section 3. The maximum. cost of the Project is expected to be $7,800,000

Section 4. The Borrower will make a reimbursement allocation from the proceeds of the

Bonds as follows:

(i) any Expenditures fox the Project made no eaxlier than 60 days prior to the

date hereof, except as may be authorized by other authority including those that may be

authorized pursuant to the general reimbursement resolution adopted by the Authority on

or about July 23, 2013; provided, however that such reimbursement for expenditures

arising eaxlier than August 28, 2013 are permitted by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,

as amended, and shall not adversely affect the tax-exempt status of the Bonds;

(ii) costs of issuing the Bonds and a de r~ainimis amount not to exceed the
lesser of $100,000 or 5% of the proceed of the Bonds, regardless of when paid; and

(iii) "Preliminary Expenditures" for the Project, regardless of when made, to

the extent that the total amount of such Preliminary Expenditures are not in excess of

20% of the aggregate issue prices of the Bonds;
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provided that, except for Expenditures described in clauses (ii) and (iii), no

reimbursement of the original expenditure shall be made more than 1$ months after the

later of the: (a) date the original expenditure is paid; or (b) the date the Project is placed

in service or abandoned, but in no event more than three years after the date that the

original expendituxe is paid.

For purposes of clause (iii), "Preliminary Expenditures" shall include

architectural, engineering, surveying, soil testing, reimbursement bond issuance, and

similar costs that are incurred prior to commencement of acquisition, construction or

rehabilitation of the Project, other than land acquisition, site preparation and similar costs

incident to commencement of constzuction.

Section 5. All prior resolutions and parts thereof, to the extent inconsistent herewith, are

hereby rescinded.

Section 6. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of October, 2013

Attested to:

Eliezer Kuperman

Secretary
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College: Beth Medrash Govoha of America

Project: 006-01 Construction of Library and Research Center

Schedule D

Form 8308 Allocation Schedule

425 11th

Item Financed

Land

Buildings and Structures

Amount

Equipment with Accelerated Cost
Recovery System life of more than S years 

Equipment With ACRS life of 5

Years or Less

Other Expense 
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PART B

PROJECT DUE DILIGENCE REQUEST

AND TAX QUESTIONNAIRE

BETH MEDRASH GOVOHA
006-02 PRINCETON AVENUE ACADEMIC CENTER

CONSTRUCTION OF ACADEMIC SPACE
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College Beth Medrash Govoha of America

Project 006-02 Princeton Ave Academic Center Construction of Academic
 Space

PROJECT DUE DILIGENCE REQUEST

AND
TAX QUESTIONNAIRE

Each Institution must also provide a complete set of responses to Part B for each

Proiect that was awarded a Grant (w/o regard to funding by each Program). Provi
de 1

original and copies on 4 CDs or flash drives.

Information with Respect to the Project:

i. Name of the College and the Project, as shown. in the chart accompanying the

cover memo.

Name of the College: Beth Medrash Govoha of America

Name of the Project: 006-02 Princeton Avenue Academic Center

Construction of Academic Space

ii. If there have been any changes in the proposed sources and uses of Grant

amounts and other moneys for the Project sznce the submission of your

application, please complete Schedule A. N/A

iii. Other than as provided in youx application, resolutions of the Board of

Directors/Trustees of the Grantee (i) approving the Project, (ii) approving any

reimbursements from Bond proceeds and (iii) authorizing any bridge or

interim loans. NOTE: Should the Grantee wish to reimburse itself from Grant

proceeds for expenditures incurred after April 29, 2013 and prior to the date

the Bonds are issued, there must be a "reimbursement resolution" adopted by

the Authority, the State or the Grantee reflecting such intent not later than 60

days after the date of the expenditures to be reimbursed. The Authority

adopted such resolutions on July 23, 2013. Please provide any earlier ones

adopted by the Grantee.

Please see Attachment I for a "Reimbursement Resolution" which will be

considered far approval at Beth Medrash Govoha's Board of Trustees meeting

this Monday, October 28, 2013. We will forward fihe approved resolution

under separate cover after the meeting.

10/25/13 2:36PM B_1
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College Beth Medrash Govoha of America

Project 006-02 Princeton Ave. Academic Center Construction
 of Academic Space

iv. Provide any changes regarding applicable State and municipal app
rovals,

permits, planning, zorving or environmental matters from those descr
ibed in

your application. N/A

TAX
QUESTIONNAIRE

Tl~i.s questionnaire attempts to address many of the issues relating to
 the tax

exemption of bonds issued to finance facilities for Public Colleges 
and Private

Colleges that are 501(c)(3) organizations. Some of the questions will app
ly to all

Colleges and some will apply to only to Public Colleges or Private Colleges. Th
e

questionnaire is not exhaustive however, and further information may be require
d frort~

you concerning areas covered by the questionnaire, issues raised by your res
ponses to

the questionnaire, or other matters relating to the tax exemption of the Bond
s. Your

responses in this questionnaire will form the basis of tax certificates which 
may be

required by Bond Counsel..

The following general tax requirements apply in order for Projects of 
all

Colleges to qualify:

• Certain private business use and payment limitations

• Management or service contracts may not result in "private business

use" (described herein)
• Research contracts generally may not result in "private business use"

(described herein)

• Average maturity of Bonds cannot exceed 120% of average life of

financed assets
• Debt service cannot be Federally guaranteed.

• Arbitrage limitations, including yield restrictions and rebate

requirements.
• IRS Reporting Requirements on Form 8038 or Form 8038-G

The following general tax requirements apply in order for Projects of Public

Colleges to qualify:

• Grantee/user must be a governmental entity.

• Not more than 10% of the Grant financed Project may be used by non-

State or local governmental, nonprofit or for-profit entities. If the use is

unrelated or disproportionate to the College use, this limit is reduced to

5%. Thus use by for-profit entities, nonprofit or the US Government

must be closely scrutinized.

10/25/13 2:36PM B_2
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College Beth Medrash Govoha of America

Project 006-02 Princeton Ave Academic Center Construction of 
Academic Space

The following general tax requirements apply in order for Projects of 
Private

Colleges to qualify:

• Grantee/user must be a 501(c)(3) organization.

• All bond financed property must be owned by a governmental entity or

501(c)(3) organization.

• Not more than 5% of the Grant Financed Project) may be used by

nongoveental or for-profit entities. Thus use by for-profit entities or

the US Government must be closely scrutinized.

• Costs of issuance financed by Bonds is limited to 2% of proceeds of the

Bonds; balance must be paid by Grantee.

• $150 million. limit for tax exempt bonds for "test period beneficiarie
s"

unless Project is a new capital project.

• TEFRA Approval required by Governor after public hearing, precede
d

by newspaper publication of a notice of hearing at least 14 days in

advance.

Tn the event that additional space is needed for any responses, please feel free

to elaborate on separate sheets whic?n you attach to the questionnaire.

I. Use of Bond Proceeds

Private Business Use/Payments

Public Colleges

The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") includes

numerous requirements relating to the tax exemption of bonds used to finance facilities

for Public Colleges. One of the requirements necessary to establish that bonds are

governmental bonds is that no more than 10% of the proceeds of the bonds are to be

used for any "przvate business use." Not more that 10% or of the debt service on the

Bonds can be payable by or secured by property used by private business users. If the

private business use is unrelated or disproportionate to the governmental use, these

limits are reduced to 5%.

"Private business use" includes any use directly or indirectly in a trade ox

business carried on by any person other than a governmental entity or use by the Public

College in an activity that is unrelated to its educational activities. A private use can.

occur pursuant to a lease, a special arrangement, a management or services contract,

10/25/13 2:36PM B~3
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College Beth Medrash Govoha of America

Project 006-02 Princeton Ave. Academic Center Construction of Academic 
Space

certain research arrangements or by any arrangement where a private business is u
sing

the financed property in a manner different than the general public. For these

purposes, any use by a person other than a natural person is treated as a use in tra
de or

business. Use, however, as a member of the general public is not taken into acco
unt.

"Governmental Unit" means any state or political subdivisions thereof (i.e., a sta
te or

division of state with a substantial amount of sovereign powers) ox instrumentality
 of a

state and does not include the United States or any agency or instrumentality of 
the

United States. Typical arrangements that may result in private business use 
for a

college include food service and bookstore contracts, parking management contr
acts,

research contracts, rental or lease of facilities and summer camp programs which 
are

run by unaffiliated entities. Private business use can also arise in the case of a pr
oject

that is a leasehold improvement on land owned by a nongovernmental entity.

Private Colleges

Section 145 of the Code provides numerous additional requirements relating to

the tax exemption of bonds used to finance facilities for Private Colleges. Bonds

which satisfy the requirements of Section 145 of the Code shall be referred to a
s

"Qualified 501(c)(3) Bonds". One of the requirements necessary to establish that

bonds are Qualified 501(c)(3) Bonds is that no more than 5% of the "net proceeds" 
of

the bonds are to be used for any "private business use."

In the context of Qualified 501(c)(3) Bonds, net proceeds used in any pri
vate

business use includes costs of issuance of the bonds and any use directly or 
indirectly

in a trade or business caxried on by any person other than an "Exempt Pers
on".

Exempt Person means (i) a Governmental Unit, or (ii) a 501(c)(3) organization (to th
e

extent used in an activity which does not constitute an "unrelated trade oz busin
ess"

("Unrelated Trade or Business") determined by applying Section 512(a) of the Code).

Private business use includes any lease, management or service contract and certain

other rights given to anon-Exempt Person. For these purposes, any use by a person

other than a natural person is treated as a use in trade or business. Use, however, as a

member of the general public is not taken into account. "Governmental Unit" means

any state ox political subdivisions thereof (i.e., a state ox division of state with a

substantial amount of sovereign powers) or instrumentality of a state and does not

include the United States or any agency ox instrumentality of the United States. Typical

uses that must be considered by a college include food service and bookstore contracts,

parking management contracts and summer camp contracts.

The questions which follow in this section are designed to elicit information

regarding compliance with the private use and certain related limitations.
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College Beth Medrash Govoha of America

Project 006-02 Princeton Ave Academic Center Constructio
n of Academic Space

All Colleges

1. Will there be any private business use of the Project or a direct or
 indirect

loan or grant of the proceeds of the Grant to any other person 
or entity

(including, in the case of Public Colleges, a nonprofit corporation) 
at any

tirr~e while the Bonds axe outstanding?

0 Yes C✓1No

If yes, please explain (attach documents, if necessary). If there is any spe
cial

entitlement (e.g., right to use any portion of the Project different fr
om the

general public) that "may" result in a private business use, please describ
e it.

2. Aire the facilities being financed expected to be used by the College
 during

the entire time period the Bonds may be outstanding? (CIF — 30 years, 
HEFT

—15 years, HETI —15 years, ELF —10 years and GO — 35 years)

QYes ❑No

If no, please explain.

3. To the extent any facilities will be made available on a rental bas
is or

constitute a trade or business activity, please explain the scope of su
ch

activities and the amount of such uses by individuals or other entities. If a
ny

type of restaurant facilities, arenas, cafeterias or bookstores will be financed,

please explain the anticipated use by employees, patrons and others. N/A

4. Will the name of any private business be used in connection with any part of

the Project (i.e., are naming rzghts being provided in exchange for any payment

or coxttribution)? ❑Yes C✓.(No. If yes, describe in detail and provide any

relevant agreements.
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College Beth Medrash Govoha of America

Project 006-02 Princeton Ave Academic Center Const
ruction of Academic Space

5. Will any portion of the Project be leased by the Public College
 or be the subject

of a possessory interest or license, formal or informal, g
iven by the Public

College? ❑Yes C~JNo.

6. Will there be any non-college summer uses of the Project 
(i.e, sports camps)?

❑Yes CJNo. If yes, please describe.

7. Are all those, who are or will be lessees, licensees, or persons
 with a possessory

interest in the Project, a State or Local Governmental Unit
 (and in the case of

Private Colleges, a 501(c)(3) corporation which is using the 
Project for its

charitable purpose)? QYes ❑No If no, please describe.

BMG is the owner of the Project. There will be no lessees or li
censees.

8. If the Project includes parking facilities, is the general publi
c, not on College

business, permitted to use the parking facility? ❑Yes ❑No. N/A

Are long term parking licenses to be provided? ❑Yes ONo. If yes, please

explain the nature of the licenses and thezx permitted duration and te
rms N/A

Does the College manage the parking facilities? ❑Yes ❑No. Please provide a

copy of any management contracts. N/A

9. Will any portion of the Project serve persons other than students, 
visitors or

employees of the College? ❑Yes QNo. If yes, please discuss.

Other than members of the public, who are welcome to visit and
 use our

facilities, no portion of the project will serve anyone other than 
students,

employees and visitors.

10. Will any portion of the Project include privately owned solar panels, 
cell

towers or be subject to a power purchase agreement of any type?

❑Yes QNo. If yes, please discuss.

11. Will any portion of the Project (i.e., bookstore, food service, parking) (i
) be

managed by a person other than the College and its employees or (ii
} be a

subject to service contracts with a third party? ❑Yes QNo. If no, please

skip to question 12. Otherwise, please provide a copy of the contracts.
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College Beth Medrash Govoha of America

Project 006-02 T'rinceton Ave Academic Center Const
ruction of Academic Space

12 Are there or will there be any cooperative research agreements 
with, or funded

by, non-Exempt Persons which will involve use of any portion 
of the Project?

Yes ONo. If yes, describe in detail and attach a copy of any existi
ng

or proposed contract.

13. Will there be any research agreements if research is conducted on the
 premises

of any portion of the Project facilities. ❑Yes C✓1No. If no, skip to next

question. If there axe any research contracts with a nongovernmental enti
ty,

please provide copies thereof.

14. Is any portion of the Project an "output-type facility" (e.g., utility)?

❑Yes QNo. If yes, please describe and provide copies of any contracts

Will any of the output from the facility be used to service facilitie
s used

in the trade or business of persons other than Exempt Person?

[Yes ❑No. N/A

Will any of the output from such facility be sold? ❑Yes ❑No. If so,

please identify the pwrchaser(s) and supply the purchase contract(s). N/
A

In the event any output from such facility will be sold, were any o
ther

tax-exempt obligations used to finance such facility? ❑Yes ❑No. If so, please

indicate the aggregate principal amount of such obligations and the iss
uer of

such obligations. N/A

Was any of the property nongovernmental output property (i.e.

previously owned by a nongovernmental person) ❑Yes ❑No. N/A

15. Will any of the proceeds of the Bonds be loaned or granted to any per
son or

entity by the College? ❑Yes C✓1No. If yes, please identify.

16. Is there or will there be any current or proposed fundraising activities expec
ted

with respect to any portion of the Project? ❑Yes Q No. If yes, please provide

copies of all solicitation materials, including a sample donor card/letter
, and

indicate the goals and expectations of the fundraising cannpaign.
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College Beth Medrash Govoha of America

Project 006-02 Princeton Ave. Academic Center Construction 
of Academic Space

Private Colleges Only

1. TEFRA -Please indicate the specific street address of the Project
 (or lots and

blocks or near by streets, if there are no street addresses).

655 Princeton Avenue

Lakewood NJ 08701

2. Will any portion of the Project be used by the Grantee in 
any activity

constituting an Unrelated Trade of Business? OYes Q No. If yes, please

describe. (Note: the lack of "unrelated business" taxable income from an

activity by virtue of the definitions or modifications to income 
contained in

Section. 512 of the Code is not determinative of whether an Unrel
ated Trade or

Business activity is being carried on within the meaning of Sect
ion S 13 of the

Code).

3. Will any portion of the Grant be used to provide any airplane, sky 
box, or other

luxury box, facility used primarily for gambling, or store the principal
 purpose

of which is the sale of alcoholic beverages for consumption off premis
es?

❑Yes Q No. If yes, describe in detail.

4. Will any portion of the Project be used to provide residential rental h
ousing?

OYes JNo. If yes, please discuss in detail and describe the scope of

facilities offered within such housing.

Will such housing be available to the general public? ❑Yes ❑No. N/A

Is the housing new or existing? ❑New ❑Existing N/A

5. Will there be any religious use of or religious instruction in any of the Proj
ect

Facilities? ❑Yes CJNo. If yes, please explain.
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College Beth Medrash Govoha of America

Project 006-02 Princeton Ave. Academic Center Construction of
 Academic Space

6. $150 Million Limitation

Another requirement imposed under Section 145 of the Code for 
certain bonds

to be Qualified 501(c)(3) Bonds is connpliance with the $150 million 
limitation.

The $150 million limitation restricts the amount of tax-exennpt bonds

outstanding at any one time which may be issued for the benefit 
of any

501(c)(3) organization or related persons to $150 million exclud
ing bonds

issued after August 5, 1997, as part of an issue 95% or more of the 
proceeds of

which are used to finance capital expenditures incurred after such dat
e.

Will 95% or more of the proceeds of the Grant be used to fi
nance capital

expenditures?

QYes ❑No.

7. What happens to the assets of the Grantee upon its dissolution?

As per the bylaws, in the event of the dissolution of this Corporation, its 
assets

remaining after payment, or provision for payment, of all debts and 
liabilities

of this Corporation shall be distributed for one or more exempt

purposes within the meaning of Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal
 Revenue

Code, or shall be distributed to the federal government, or to a state 
or local

government, fora public purpose. Such Distribution shall be made in

accordance with all applicable provisions of the law of this State.

8. Are the yeax-end excesses of revenues over expenses of the Grantee used for

future operations? [~JYes ❑No. If not, for what purpose are such funds

used?

II. Expected Economic Life of the Financed Projects and its Components

Please provide the expected economic life of the components of the Project.

being financed with the proceeds of the Grant on Schedule B. Please see attached

Schedule B.
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College Beth Medrash Govoha of America

Project 006-02 Princeton Ave. Academic Center Construction of Ac
ademic Space

III. Arbitrage Limitations

A. General

1. Have binding contracts obligating the expenditure in excess of 5%
 of the

Grant been entered into by the Grantee or will such contracts be ente
red

into by the Grantee within 6 months of October 1, 2013, to com
mence

construction or acquisition of the portion of the Project financed 
with the

Grant?

C✓1Yes ~No. If yes, date met ox expected to be met.

Binding contracts obligating the expenditure in excess of 5% of the
 grant

are expected to be entered into by the Grantee within 2-3 mon
ths of

project funding, and no more than six months. We can prov
ide dafie

expected as soon as we are informed by the State as to the d
ate of

project funding.

2. Has or will construction or acquisition of the portion of th
e Project

financed with the Grant commence by the date of funding?

❑Yes C✓(No. If no, when will it occur?

Construction is expected to commence with demolition work within 1

month of project funding.

3. When do you expect the portion of the Project funded with the proceeds of

the Grant to be completed?

16 months from the date of funding.

Please update the drawdown schedule of the proceeds of the Grant to

reflect any changes from the schedule you previously provided in your

application (please note that another updated schedule may be required i
n

conjunction with the sale of EFA and/or state bonds in the future).

❑Yes ❑No. N/A
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College Beth Medrash Govoha of America

Project 006-02 Princeton Ave Academic Center Construction of Ac
ademic Space

4. Will all costs of the Project constitute capital expenditures for federal

income tax purposes?

C~1Yes ~No. If no, please discuss.

5. Does any portion of the Project constitute "investment type" property, i.e.

property held as a passive vehicle for the production of income?

❑Yes C✓JNo. If yes, please explain.

6. Will the proceeds of the Grant or investment earnings thereon be used as a

substitute for (i) any donations which were raised for any portion of the

Project, or (ii) any other funds which were earmarked for the construction

or acquisition of any portion of the Project? ❑Yes QNo. If yes,

please discuss. N//A

If the answer above was yes, will any of the replaced funds be invested?

❑Yes ❑No. If yes, please discuss. N/A

7. Do you anticipate the sale of any governmental obligations for your

institution between now and June 2014?

❑Yes C~No. If yes, please discuss.

B. Reimbursement Bonds

The Grantees may spend their own money on the Project from their own non

bond financed funds (the "Costs of the Project") after adoption of a reimbursement

resolution or some other declaration of intent but prior to the date of issue of the Bonds

with the expectation of being reimbursed fxom the proceeds thereof.

Do you expect to be reimbursed from proceeds of the Bonds for expenditures

previously paid by you from other moneys?

QYes ❑No
If yes, please continue. If no, skip to the next category.
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College Beth Medrash Govoha of America

Project 006-02 Princeton Ave. Academic Center Construction of 
Academic Space

ALL OF THE FOLLOWING REQUIREMENTS MUST BE SATISFIED 
FOR

THE PROCEEDS TO BE DEEMED SPENT ON THE DATE 
OF THE

REIMBURSEMENT. REIMBURSEMENT INFORMATION MUST BE
 UPDATED

AS OF EACH CLOSING DATE.

(a) All allocations of the proceeds of the Bonds to the

reimbursement of expenditures for Costs of the Project incurred prio
r to the

issuance of the Bonds must satisfy the criteria set forth in either or a

combination of clauses (i), (ii), or (iii) (Please check box next to crit
eria that

apply):

Q (i) The Costs o£ the Project to be reimbursed were incurred

by the Grantee either after declarations of official intent

by the Grantee on or after April 29, 2013 (the date that

the Secretary of Higher education of New Jersey (the

"Secretary") certified the list of approved Projects and

award amounts) or incurred after such date and paid by

the Grantee after May 24, 2013 (the date that is 60 days

before the date of the Authority's reimbursement

resolutions).

Q (ii) The Costs of the Project to be reimbursed were incurred

on or after April 29, 2013 and paid by the Grantee for

"preliminary expenditures", including architectural,

engineering, surveying, soil testing, reimbursement bond

issuance and similax costs that were incurred prior to

commencement of construction, rehabilitation or

acquisition of the Project, which do not exceed 20

percent of the issue price of the Bonds that finances the

Project, other than land acquisition, site preparation and

similar costs incident to the co~nnmencennent of

construction; or

Q (iii) The Costs of the Project to be reimbursed were incurred

on or after April 29, 2013 and represent (1) costs of

issuance of any bond or note or (2) an amount not in

excess of the lesser of $100,000 or 5% of the proceeds of

the issue.

(b) On the dates of the Declarations of Official Intent, such

Declarations of Official Intent to reimburse expenditures were "reasonable".
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College Beth Medrash Govoha of America

Project 006-02 Prvnceton Ave. Academic Center Construction of Academi
c Space

(c) Except for those expenditures described in paragraph (a)(ii) and

(iii) above (i.e, preliminary and de rrzinimis expenditures), all allocations of t
he

proceeds of the Bonds to the reimbursement of expenditures for Costs of 
the

Project made prior to the issuance of the Bonds i.e., the closing for the B
onds

and the reimbursement allocation reflected on the issuer's books and 
records

will occur not later than 18 months after the later of (i) the date on which 
the

expenditure was paid, or (ii) the date on which the properly was placed 
in

service or abandoned, and in no event more than 3 years after the 
original

expenditure was made.

(d) All allocations of the proceeds of the Bonds to the

reirr~bursement of expenditures for Costs of the Project made prior to th
e

issuance of the Bonds are expenditures which were capital expenditures.

(e) No action or inaction of the issuer with respect to any allocation

of the proceeds of the Bonds to the reimbursement of expenditures for Costs of

the Pzoject is or will be an abusive arbitrage device or to avoid arbitrage

restrictions or other restrictions of the Code.

(~ The proceeds of the Bonds allocated to the reinnhursement of

expenditures will not, but for the allocation, be used directly or indirectly

within 1 year of the date of the reimbursement allocation, to create

"replacennent proceeds" with respect to any obligation (other than amounts

deposited to a bona fide debt service fund).

The foregoing rules focus on the date of the prior expenditure from the

Grantee's own funds, not from another financing. The official intent may be several

years old, but if the expenditure was incurred subsequent to or no earlier than 60 days

prior to the Declaration. of Official Intent but within the 18 month or 3 year period, it

may be reimbursable. An analysis of the expenditure date and placed in service date is

needed. (Please use the Reimbursement Schedule on Schedule C attached to complete

information necessary for us to make the determination.) Any expenditures that fall

within any of the exceptions, such as preliminary expenditures (20% limitation), de

minimis expenditures (maximum of $100,000 per issue) and costs of issuance would

be added to the expenditures that meet the rules. Any amounts that cannot be

reimbursed under these rules will be considered to be unspent proceeds until they are

otherwise allocated to an expenditure (i.e., spent on a future capital project) under the

arbitrage rules. Please see attached Schedule C.

If the allocation of Bonds is treated as a reimbursement under state law, but

fails the tax requirements (i.e., the proceeds are not deemed spent), the College will

10/25/13 2:36PM B-1

 

JA0343



College Beth Medrash Govoha of America
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Academic Space

still have unspent proceeds that will ultimately be subject to yield limitat
ions and that

may be subject to rebate until spent.

Reimbursed Costs Paid with Fuuds Not Debt Financed

1. Are Bond proceeds or projected investment earnings to be used 
to

reimburse the Grantee or any related party for any costs of the Project

paid by the Grantee or an affiliate prior to the issuance of the propose
d

bonds? C✓1Yes ❑No.

2. Wexe any such costs of the Project to be reimbursed paid with equity o
f

the Grantee or an affiliate (and not financed with taxable debt)?

C~Yes ❑No. If yes, please answer the questions below with respect to

such costs.

(a) Was a declaration of official intent of the Grantee, in accordance

with Treasury Regulations Section 1.150-2, made prior to or within 60

days following payment of such costs? QYes ONo. If yes, please

attach it.

As discussed above, please see Attachment I for a "Reimbursement

Resolution" which will be considered for approval at Beth Medrash

Govoha's Board of Trustees meeting this Monday, October 28, 2013.

We will forward the approved resolution under separate cover after

the meeting.

(b) How will the proceeds of the Bonds used to reimburse the Grantee

or affiliate for Project costs be used?

The portion of bond proceeds attributable to reimbursable expenses

will be used to reimburse BMG for the qualifying, reimbursable costs

incurred as permitted before funding of the bond.

Financing of Taxable Debt Used to Reimburse Costs

(a) Are the proceeds of the Bonds to be used to repay any taxable

debt of the Grantee? ❑Yes ONo.
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Project 006-02 Princeton Ave Academic Center Construction of Academic Space

If yes, describe principal amount of loan, date of borrowing and

purpose.

(b) Was a declaration of official intent of the Grantee, in accordance

with Treasury Regulations Section 1.150-2, made prior to or within 60

days following payment of such costs? ❑Yes ❑No. If yes, please
attach it. N/A

(c) Were all proceeds of the taxable debt used for solely for costs of

the Project which were paid after issuance of the taxable debt and after

April 29, 2013? Any amounts paid fox interest or costs of issuance

cannot be reimbursed. ❑Yes ❑No. N/A

If no, so that proceeds of the taxable debt were used in whole or in part

to reimburse the Grantee for costs of the Project paid prior to the

issuance of the taxable debt, please describe the date such costs were

first paid and overall amounts.

(d) How were the reimbursed amounts used by the Grantee? N/A

IV. Form 8038 Requirements —Private Colleges

In order for governmental obligations to be tax-exempt, a Form 8038 or 8038-

G roust be completed by the issuer and filed with the Internal Revenue Service within

the prescribed time period. The questions below are designed to facilitate the

completion of Form 8038 with respect to the proposed Bonds for Private Colleges.

Responses to the questions below should be completed prior to the issuance of the

proposed bonds.

1. Please indicate below the North American Industrial Classification

System Codes) (previously Standard Industrial Classifications (SIC)) for the facilities

financed with the proceeds of the Bonds.

NAICS Code 611310

2. Please classify on Schedule D the costs of the portion of the Project

financed with the proceeds of the Grant.

Please see attached Schedule D.
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The answers and information provided in response to this questionnaire are, to

the best of my knowledge and belief, true, correct, and complete, I understand that

Bond Counsel, the Authority and the State will rely on the answers and information

provided herein for the purposes set forth above.

College N

Date: October 23, 2013 By:
Name
Title
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B~~ 1vi~Dx~~SH Govox~
L A K E W O O d

RESOLUTION OF

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

OF BETH MEDRASH GOVOHA

DECLARING ITS INTENTION TO REIMBURSE ITSELF FROM THE P
ROCEEDS OF ONE

OR MORE TAX-EXEMPT FINANCINGS FOR CERTAIN EXPEN
DITURES MADE

AND/OR TO BE MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THE ACQUISITION
, CONSTRUCTION

AND EQUIPPING OF CERTAIN CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

WHEREAS, Beth Medrash Govoha (the "Borrower") is an Instit
ution of Higher

Education and 501(c)3 Corporation organized and existing under the laws 
of the State of New

Jersey; and

WHEREAS, by a resolution dated March 7, 2013 ("Original Resolution"), 
the Borrower

approved of the costs of a "Project" consisting of the construction of 
academic space and

upgrade of equipnnent and HVAC systems at the Princeton Avenue Academic 
Center (with such

costs including, but not limited to, already expended pre-construction costs) a
nd authorized the

undertaking, financing and implementation of the Project in a nnaximum aggrega
te amount not to

exceed $7,400,000, all ox any portion of which would be financed thxough t
he Building Our

Future Bond Act, (P.L. 2012, c. 41) (the "GO Bond Act"); and

WHEREAS, Borrower has applied for a grant of funds from. the State of Ne
w Jersey,

which funds are anticipated to be obtained by the State of New Jersey through the i
ssuance of

certain tax-exempt bonds; and

WHEREAS, on July 23, 2013 the New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority

("Authority") adopted a reimbursement resolution authorizing the reimbursement of

expenditures incurred not earlier than 60 days prior to that date; and

WHEREAS, the Borrower has paid, and will pay from its own funds, on and after t
he

date hereof, certain expenditures (the "Expenditures") in connection with the Project; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Borrower (the "Board") has determined that t
he

money previously advanced, including those monies advanced no more than 60 days prior to the

date hereof, and to be advanced on arzd after the date hereof to pay the Expenditures are availa
ble

only for a temporary period and it is necessary to reimburse the Borrower for the Expenditu
res

from the proceeds of one or more issues oftax-exempt bonds (the "Bonds"); and

Berea Center OffrCPi: 617 SI%TH STREETS LAKEWOOD~ NJ 08701 TEL 782.387.1060 FAX 782.~
80.832A

 

JA0348



WHEREAS, to the extent that expenditures have been incurred prior to August 28, 201
3,

nothing herein shall prevent the Borrower from seeking reimbursement pursuant any
 other

authority which may permit reimbursement for expenditures arising earlier than A
ugust 2$,

2013, including those that may be authorized pursuant to the general reimbursement
 resolution

adopted by the Authority on or about July 23, 2013; provided; however that such r
eimbursement

for expenditures arising earlier than August 28, 2013 axe permitted by the Internal Revenu
e Code

of 1986, as amended, and shall not adversely affect the tax-exempt status of the Bonds.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Board hereby declares the Borrower's intent, consistent with the March 7,

2013 Original Resolution, to reimburse the Borrower with the proceeds of the Bonds for the

Expenditures with respect to the Project made on and after August 28, 2013, which date 
is no

more than 60 days prior to the date hereof, however, nothing herein shall prevent the Borrow
er

from seeking reimbursement pursuant any other authority which may permit reimbursement for

expenditures arising earlier than August 28, 2013 including those that may be authoriz
ed

pursuant to the general reimbursement resolution adopted by the Authority on or about July 23,

2013; provided, however that such reimbursement for expenditures arising earlier than August

28, 2013 are permitted by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and shall not

adversely affect the tax-exempt status of the Bonds. The Borrower reasonably expects on the

date hereof that it will reimburse the Expenditures with the proceeds of the Bonds.

Section 2. Each Expenditure was and will be (a) of a type properly chargeable to capital

account under general federal income tax principles (determined in each case as of the date of the

Expenditure) and (b) complies with all applicable regulations of the State of New Jersey.

Section 3. The maximum cost of the Project is expected to be $7,400,000

Section 4. The Borrower will make a reimbursement allocation from the proceeds of'the

Bonds as follows:

(i) any Expenditures for the Froject made no earlier than 60 days prior to the

date hereof, except as xnay be authorized by other authority including those that may be

authorized pursuant to the general reimbursement resolution adopted by the Authority on

or about July 23, 2013; provided, however that such reimbursement for expenditures

arising earlier than August 28, 2013 are permitted by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,

as amended, and shall not adversely affect th,e tax-exempt status of the Bonds;

(ii) costs of issuing the Bonds and a de minimis amount not to exceed the

lesser of $100,000 or 5% of the proceed of the Bonds, regardless of when paid; and

(iii) "Preliminary Expenditures" for the Project, regardless of when made, to

the extent that the total amount of such Preliminary Expenditures are not in excess of

20% of the aggregate issue prices of the Bonds;
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provided that, except for Expenditures described in clauses (ii) and (iii), no

reimbursement of the original expenditure shall be made more than 18 months after the

later of the: (a) date the original expenditure is paid; or (b) the date the Project is placed

in service or abandoned, but in no event more than three yeaxs after the date that the

original expenditure is paid.

For purposes of clause (iii), "Preliminary Expenditures" shall include

architectural, engineering, surveying, soil testing, reimbursement bond issuance, and

similax costs that are incurred prior to commencement of acquisition., construction or

rehabilitation. of the Project, other than land acquisition, site preparation. and similar costs

incident to commencement of construction.

Section 5. All prior resolutions and parts thereof, to the extent inconsistent herewith, are

hereby rescinded.

Section 6. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of October, 2013

Attested to:

Eliezer Kuperman

Secretary
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College: Beth Medrash Govoha of America

Protect: 006-02.Princeton Ave. Academic Center Construction of

Academic Space

Schedule D

Form 8308 Ailocatlon Schedule

Princeton Avenue

Item Financed

Land

Buildings and Structures

Equipment with Accelerated Cost

Recovery System life of more than 5

years

Equipment With ACRS life of 5

Years or Less

Amount

Other - Expense 
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NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY

and

STATE OF NEW JERSEY

2014 HIGHER EDUCATION CAPITAL FACILITIES PROGRAMS

SECTARIAN /RELIGIOUSLY AFFILIATED
EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTION QUESTIONNAIRE

Institution: Beth Medrash Govoha of America

Project Number: 006-01

Mailing
Address:

Project
Address:

Contact:

Title:

Phone #:

Mobile #:

Email:

617 Sixth Street
Lakewood, NJ 08701

425 11th Street
Lakewood, NJ 08701

Moshe Gleiberman

Vice-President of Administration

732-367-1060 Ext.4248

848-525-8900

m~leiberman(c~bm~.edu

Please provide the information requested below. If an answer does not fit the space, please utilize a

separate sheet of paper.

Page l

105481 1.1 04/25/2014
Error! Unknown document property name.
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a. Please indicate the religious organization or faith with which the Institution is affiliated:

Beth Medrash Govoha is an independent institution rooted in Jewish tradition. It has no
formal affiliation to any hierarchical reli ious organization.

b. Please indicate the mission of the Institution:

See attached Mission Statement.

c. Please list the degrees conferred by the Institution:

College X Masters X Divinity Degree Other

(Undergraduate and Graduate)

d. Is the Project to be financed a free standing building? Yes X No _

If not, is it attached to a house of worship: Yes _ No _

e. Does the Project contain any existing or proposed areas to be used for prayer or worship?
Yes _ No X

If yes, please indicate if the prayer or worship area is amulti-specialty area that is also
used for religious instruction, secular instruction, recreational use and/or other non-
worship activities. Please describe the various uses.

£ Are you seeking grant funds to finance any chapels or other places of worship located
within the Project? Yes No X If yes, please describe.

g. Describe the proposed uses) of the Project to be funded, including any religious use of
the Project.

The building; will be used as a library and for academic office space.

Page 2
1054811.1. 04/25/2014

Error! Unknown document property name.
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h. Is admission to the Institution open to anyone who is otherwise qualified, regardless of
religious affiliation, gender, national or ethnic origin, race or color?

Yes No X

If no, please explain using additional sheets, if necessary.

Admission to the Institution is limited to qualified males, regardless of reli i
affiliation, national or ethnic origin, race or color.

Does the curriculum include "religious instruction"? For this purpose, "religious
instruction" means instruction in the practice or observance of a particular religion.

Yes X No

If yes, please describe the program of religious instruction and provide a description of
the purpose of the program and/or the courses that are within the program.

There is a small program available to advanced students that leads to ordination. Fewer
than 5% of the students enrolled in the institution participate in this program. The
students who are seeking ordination may be deemed to participate in a course of reli ig ous
instruction.

Is the religious instruction: Mandatory _Optional X

If the religious instruction is optional, are students permitted to opt out at their own
discretion? Yes X No

If yes, what alternative courses are available or required for students who opt out? If any
are required, please describe.

No alternatives are required —religious instruction described above is opt-in, not opt-out.
Fewer than 5% of the students in the institution opt-in for the ordination program.

Does the curriculum include "religious study"? For this purpose, "religious study" means
the study of religious beliefs, behaviors, texts, institutions.

Yes X No

If yes, please describe the program of religious study and provide a description of the
purpose of the program and/or the courses that are within the program.

Because portions of the curriculum may utilize or reference texts with religious on inns,
they involve "religious study" as that term has been defined for purposes of this
questionnaire.

Page 3
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k. Is the Institution accredited by any professional association or national governing board?

Yes No X

If yes, please identify:

Is the Institution accredited by the Middle States Commission on Higher Education?

Yes No X

If the Institution is accredited by any other nationally recognized accrediting
organization, please identify: Institution is accredited by AARTS, a nationally reco nized
accreditin organization.

If the Institution is not accredited, is it in the process of applying for accreditation? N/A
Yes No

If not, why not?

If yes, please identify the organization being applied to for accreditation:

m. Has the Institution ever had an application for accreditation rejected:

Yes No X

If yes, date of application:

Name of organization:

Reason for rejection:

n. If the Institution is affiliated with a particular faith, are the faculty and/or staff of the
Institution required to be of the same faith?

Yes _ No
N/A Please
refer to question
"a" above.

Please attach copies of the following materials:

A. Course descriptions of all required secular and religious courses. No religious courses are
required. Course descriptions for required undergraduate courses are attached. (See
Attachment A.)

Page 4
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B. An explanation of the credit-hours required to attain each degree, See attached,
Attachment B.

as well as the specific requirements, if any, relating to credit-hours for religious courses and

secular courses. N/A
If there axe requirements relating to daily or weekly prayer, please describe. N/A
C. Applicant's by-laws (must include non-discrimination policy that states the applicant will.

not discriminate in its admission policy or hiring based on race, color, gender, religious
and national or ethnic origin). See Attachment C,for BMG By-laws, with non-
discrimination clause in Article 9; Non-discrimination policy from BMG's 2013-2014
catalog; and BMG's employment-related non-discrimination policy.

D. Mission statement. See Attachment D.
E. Promotional materials and press releases. See Attachment E.

Certification. by CEO/Executive Director

As the Chief Executive Officer or Executive Director, Y certify that the information submitted in

this application is accurate and carn~plete to the best of zx~y knowledge and belief after due inquiry.

CEO or Execut' e Director

Aaron. Kotler
Print Name and Title

7 054811. l 04/23/2014

Chief Executive Officer
Title

llate
~ (~-~I ~~

Page 5
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NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY

and

STATE OF NEW JERSEY

2014 HIGHER EDUCATION CAPITAL FACILITIES PROGRAMS

SECTARIAN /RELIGIOUSLY AFFILIATED
EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTION QUESTIONNAIRE

Institution: Beth Medrash Govoha of America

Project Number: 006-02

Mailing
Address:

Project
Address:

Contact:

Title:

Phone #:

Mobile #:

Email:

617 Sixth Street
Lakewood, NJ 08701

655 Princeton Avenue
Lakewood, NJ 08701

Moshe Gleiberman

Vice-President of Administration

732-367-1060 Ext.4248

848-525-8900

m~leiberman(a~bm~.edu

Please provide the information requested below. If an answer does not fit the space, please utilize a

separate sheet of paper.

Page 1
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Please indicate the religious organization or faith with which the Institution is affiliated:

Beth Medrash Govoha is an inde~,endent institution rooted in Jewish tradition. It has no
formal affiliation to anYhierarchical religious organization.

b. Please indicate the mission of the Institution:

See attached Mission Statement.

c. Please list the degrees conferred by the Institution:

College X Masters X Divinity Degree Other

(Undergraduate and Graduate)

d. Is the Project to be financed a free standing building? Yes X No_

If not, is it attached to a house of worship: Yes _ No

e. Does the Project contain any existing or proposed areas to be used for prayer or worship?

Yes_ No X

If yes, please indicate if the prayer or worship area is amulti-specialty area that is also

used for religious instruction, secular instruction, recreational use and/or other non-

worship activities. Please describe the various uses.

f. Are you seeking grant funds to finance any chapels or other places of worship located
within the Project? Yes No X If yes, please describe.

g. Describe the proposed uses) of the Project to be funded, including any religious use of

the Project.

The space renovated through the Project will be used exclusively as academic and library
space•

Page 2
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h. Is admission to the Institution open to anyone who is otherwise qualified, regardless of
religious affiliation, gender, national or ethnic origin, race or color?

Yes No X

If no, please explain using additional sheets, if necessary.

Admission to the Institution is limited to qualified males, rep~ardless of reli i~ ous
affiliation national or ethnic origin, race or color.

Does the curriculum include "religious instruction"? For this purpose, "religious
instruction" means instruction in the practice or observance of a particular religion.

Yes X No

If yes, please describe the program of religious instruction and provide a description of
the purpose of the program and/or the courses that are within the program.

There is a small program available to advanced students that leads to ordination. Fewer
than 5% of the students enrolled in the institution participate in this program. The
students who are seeking ordination may be deemed to participate in a course of reli i
instruction.

Is the religious instruction: Mandatory _Optional X

If the religious instruction is optional, are students permitted to opt out at their own
discretion? Yes X No

If yes, what alternative courses are available or required for students who opt out? If any
are required, please describe.

No alternatives are required —religious instruction described above is opt-in, not opt_OUt•
Fewer than 5% of the students in the institution opt-in for the ordination program.

j. Does the curriculum include "religious study"? For this purpose, "religious study" means
the study of religious beliefs, behaviors, texts, institutions.

Yes X No

If yes, please describe the program of religious study and provide a description of the
purpose of the program and/or the courses that are within the program.

Because portions of the curriculum may utilize or reference texts with religious origins,

they involve "religious study" as that term has been defined fo~urposes of this
questionnaire.

Page 3
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k. Is the Institution accredited by any professional association or national governing board?

Yes No X

If yes, please identify:

Is the Institution accredited by the Middle States Commission on Higher Education?

Yes No X

If the Institution is accredited by any other nationally recognized accrediting
organization, please identify: Institution is accredited by AARTS, a nationally reco n
accrediting organization.

If the Institution is not accredited, is it in the process of applying for accreditation? N/A
Yes No

If not, why not?

If yes, please identify the organization being applied to for accreditation:

m. Has the Institution ever had an application for accreditation rejected:

Yes No X

If yes, date of application:

Name of organization:

Reason for rejection:

n. If the Institution is affiliated with a particular faith, are the faculty and/or staff of the
Institution required to be of the same faith?

Yes No _
N/A Please
refer to question
"a" above.

Page 4
1054811.1 04/25/2014

Error! Unknown document property name.

JA0362



Please attach copies of the following materials:

A. Course descriptions of all required secular and religious courses. No religious courses are
required. Course descriptions for required undergraduate courses are attached. (See
Attachment A.)

B. An explanation of the credit-hours required to attain each degree, See attached,
Attachment B.
as well as the specific requirements, if any, relating to credit-hours for religious courses
and secular courses. N/A
If there are requirements relating to daily or weekly prayer, please describe. N/A

C. Applicant's by-laws (must include non-discrimination policy that states the applicant will
not discriminate in its admission. policy or hiring based on race, color, gender, religious
and national or ethnic origin) See Attachment C for BMG By-laws, with non-
discrimination clause in Article 9; Non-discrimination policy from BMG's 2013-2014
catalog; and BMG's employment-related non-discrirrtznation policy.

D. Mission statement. See Attachment D.

E. Promotional materials and press releases. See Attachment E.

Certification by CEO/Executive Director

As the Chief Executive Officer or Executive Director, I certify that the information submitted in
this application is accurate and complete to the best of my kno~vledge and belief after due inquiry.

CEO or Ex cutive Director

Aaron Kotler
Print Name and Title

1054811.1 04/23/2014

Chief Executive Officer
Title

Date

Page 5
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ATTACHMENT A

BETH MEDRASH GOVOHA

Reauired Under raduate Courses

Bachelor of Talmudic Studies

o373A & B Intermediate Talmud Intensive ~ & z 6 credits

Prerequisite to o373A: oz7zB

Prerequisite to o373B~ a373A

Corequisite to o373A: o363A, Intermediate Jurisprudence ~

Corequisite to 03736:03636, Intermediate Jurisprudence z

Description: Initial introduction of the student to independent Talmud study. Close reading of the

Talmud and inferring its apparent meaning in the various disciplines it encompasses. Frequent

recourse to mentors and teachers with specialized knowledge of each of the Talmudic disciplines.

Extended discussion of issues with peers to clarify complex lines of reasoning and inferences.

Contrast and resolution of apparent Talmudic reasoning with other sources, particularly classical

Talmud Commentaries and more modern analyses of Talmudic explication and jurisprudence.

o474A & B Senior Talmud Intensive ~ & z 6 credits

Prerequisite to o474A~ 03736

Prerequisite to o474B~ o474A

Corequisite to o474A: o464A, Senior Jurisprudence ~

Corequisite to o474B:o464B, Senior Jurisprudence z

Description: Guided independent Talmud study. Formulating integrated hypotheses about Talmudic

meaning and Talmudic reasoning in the areas of Ethics, Philosophy, Religion, Economics, Law,

Sociology, History, Psychology, Text Interpretation, Classical Civilizations, Science, Mathematics, and

Political Science. Isolating, defining and clarifying concepts. Maintaining consistency of argument.

Learning to defend opposing lines of reasoning based on differing basic postulates and outcomes of

logical positions in other areas of thought. Continued extensive discussion with peers, with less

frequent but regular reliance on mentors and teachers.

o575A & B Advanced Talmud Intensive t & 2 6 credits

Prerequisite to o575A~ °4746

Prerequisite to o575B~ o575A

Corequisite to o575A: o565A, Advanced Jurisprudence i

Corequisite to o575B:o565B, Advanced Jurisprudence z
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Description: Independent Talmud study. Formulating rationales and logical bases for posited

Talmudic meaning and reasoning in the reading of the Talmud text and in the Talmudic disciplines.

Analyzing the internal and external consistency of disciplinary arguments based on Talmudic

approaches. Posing questions within an established framework, and understanding appropriate

modifications of framework to re-establish consistency and logic. Developing and defending an

intellectual position. Formulating and justifying a philosophical outlook within Talmudic disciplinary

and interpretive frameworks.

o383A & B Intermediate Talmud Survey t & i 4 credits

Prerequisite to o383A: oz8zB

Prerequisite to o383g~ o383A
Corequisite to o383A: o363A, Intermediate Jurisprudence ~

Corequisite to o383B: 03636, Intermediate Jurisprudence z

Description: Continued, and more independently based, overview study of large portions of

additional Talmud tractates, beyond those covered in Beginning Survey, to gain acquaintance with

the major principles of the additional tractates and to the knowledge and applications of the various

disciplines as embodied in the larger scope of an entire, or a major portion of a Tractate.

o484A & B Senior Talmud Survey ~ & z 4 credits

Prerequisite to o484A: o383g

Prerequisite to o484g~ o484A

Corequisite to o484A: o464A, Senior Jurisprudence ~

Corequisite to o484B: o464B, Senior Jurisprudence z

Description: Continued overview of large portions of additional Talmud tractates, beyond those

covered in Beginning and Intermediate Survey, to gain acquaintance with the subjects and major

principles of the additional tractates. Formulation of aTalmudic world-view that forms a prism

through which the individual disciplines are seen to form a seamless continuum of knowledge and

thought for the life of the scholar.

o585A & B Advanced Talmud Survey ~ & z 4 credits

Prerequisite to o585A~ °4846

Prerequisite to o585g~ o585A

Corequisite to o585A: o565A, Advanced Jurisprudence ~

Corequisite to 05856: °5656, Advanced Jurisprudence z

Description: Continued overview of large portions of additional Talmud tractates, beyond those

covered in Beginning, Intermediate and Senior Survey, to gain acquaintance with the subjects and
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major principles of the additional tractates. Expanding the student's scholarly world-view to

additional application areas and through additional reasoning paradigms.
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ATTACHMENT B
BETH MEDRASH GOVOHA
EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM

Bachelor of Talmuddc Studies - A five-year undergraduate program in Talmudic studies
leading to the Bachelor of Talmudic Studies. 150 undergraduate course credits are required to

complete the Bachelor of Talmudic Studies.

Master of Talmudic Studies — A two-year graduate program in Talmudic Studies leading to the
Master of Talmudic Studies. 60 graduate-level course credits are required to complete the Master of

Talmudic Studies.

Graduate Talmudic Diploma - A four-year post-graduate program that is open to those who have

completed a Master's level program at Beth Medrash Govoha or at another recognized Talmudic

program. The diploma indicates successful completion of a minimum of 120 credits of post-graduate

study.

Advanced Graduate Talmudic Diploma — A four-year, advanced post-graduate program that is

open to graduates of the Graduate Talmudic Diploma program at Beth Medrash Govoha and graduates

of comparable post-master's programs at other recognized Talmudic programs. A minimum of 120

credits of in-depth, advanced graduate level work beyond the post-master's level is required to

complete the Advanced Graduate Talmudic Diploma.
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ATTACHMENT C

BMG NQN-DISCRIMINATION POLICY AS PER 201.3-2014 CATALOG:

Beth Medrash Govoha admits qualified men of any race, color, national and ethnic origin, and

creed and affords them all the rights, privileges, programs and activities generally accorded or

made available to its students. Beth Medrash Govoha does not discriminate on the basis of race,
color, national and ethnic origin, age, creed or disability in administration of its educational

policies, admission policies, scholarship and loan programs, or any other school-administered
programs.

Beth Medrash Govoha is an Equal Opportunity Employer.

BMG NON-DISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT POLICY:

Beth Medrash Govoha does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, creed, religion, gender,

pregnancy, marital status, age, national origin, ethnicity, ancestry, handicap or disability, atypical

hereditary cellular or blood trait, or service in the Armed Forces of the United States or status as

a veteran of the Vietnam Era.
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ATTACHMENT D

MISSION STATEMENT OF
BETH MEDRASH GOVOHA

Beth Medrash Govoha —Rabbi Aaron Kotler Institute for Advanced Learming is an institution of

Higher Education that specializes in advanced Talmudic scholarship. Its primary objective is to

produce Talmudic scholars and to thereby provide firm, lifelong foundations for its students,
graduates and their communities. Beth Medrash Govoha strives to offer the broadest Talmudic

curriculum available in any such institute in the world, providing its students with the

opportunity to study almost any area in the widest spectrum of Talmudic study.

Beth Medrash Govoha is dedicated to helping its students achieve the highest level of

scholarship along with intensive commitment to academic excellence in every area of Talmudic

Studies. This is achieved both through unique scope in the student body and through a broad
array of Talmudic Studies programs, which surpass that of any other institute in the world.

Beth Medrash Govoha carries out its objectives through its undergraduate and graduate divisions

and through its community based programs. The Beth Medxash Govoha undergraduate school is

a five-year college; the Rabbi Aaron Kotler Institute for Advanced Learning is the graduate

school. The undergraduate school is designed to provide the student with a thorough foundation
in the core areas of Talmud, in accord with the classic model of such scholarship. The school

also prepares students to integrate scholarly training into their personal and professional lives.

The Rabbi Aaron Kotler Institute for Advanced Learning promotes advanced scholarship and

research in classical Talmudic and cognate studies. In addition, it is concerned with professional

orientation by providing programs to prepare these scholars as teachers and administrators in
secondary schools and institutions of higher Talmudic studies, and in other forms of community
service. An integral part of the scholastic and professional aims zs ethical and moral growth and
maturity of the students, based on Jewish ethics and philosophy.

Recognizing that lofty scholarship goals cannot be achieved except in a setting which promotes
academic excellence in every way, the institution shall strive to provide learning facilities, such
as lecture halls, study halls and the libraries which adequately fill the needs of students and
faculty. The commitment to provide a total learning environment for the student scholar shall
also prevail with respect to adequate scholarship and fellowship aid, as well as providing
comfortable residence halls and other living quarters for students and faculty. For the institution
as a whole communal leadership, volunteerism, community involvement and public service are a
central feature of campus and academic life, and as such they have a high priority in Beth
Medrash Govoha's mission.
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DRIVING GROWTH

Valuing Beth Medrash Govoha's Contribution to
Lakewood Township and the State of New Jersey

Appleseed Report on the Economic Impact of
Beth Medrash Govoha

September 2011
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BMG Campus

BMG generated $145.1 million in economic output

and 1,445 full-time-equivalent jobs in Ocean

County in 2010.

2 ~ DRIVING ECONOMIC GROWTH
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Highlights

BMG - A World-Class Institution

The largest and most highly regarded Talmudic college in the world

• 6,203 undergraduate and graduate students
• 9,624 students and alumni living in Lakewood
• $15 million in annual purchases of goods, services and construction

• $9.6 million annually in payroll

BMG -The Driver of Lakewood's Revitalization,

Success and Growth

BMG's growth doubled Lakewood's population from 45,028 to 92,843, adding

47,81 S new residents in just 20 years.

Among NJ municipalities in X009, only Jersey City generated more residential build-

ing permits or spent more on residential construction. In 2010 Lakewood was first

in both.

In just ten years, BMG drove more than $3.3 billion in new residential ratables to

Lakewood's tax base.

BMG represents 59% of Lakewood's families and 74°/o of Cakewood's married

couples.

BMG -Building New Jersey's Economy

BMG generated $145 million of annual economic output and 1,445 NJ jobs.

Between 2011 and 2015, BMG will spend $45 million on campus construction in

NJ.

BETH MEDRASH GOVOHA ( 3
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BMG Campus

Lakewood's largest and most central enterprise

4 ~ DRIVING ECONOMIC GROWTH
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Introduction

During the past twenty years, Beth Medrash Govoha
(BMG), the largest Talmudic college (known infor-
mally as a "Yeshiva") in the world and among the
most highly regarded, has helped turn the Township
of Lakewood into one of New Jersey's most dynamic,
fast-growing and vibrant communities. As the U.S.
Census shows, between 1990 and 2010, Lakewood's
population more than doubled, rising from 45,028
to 92,843. The township added more residents
during that period than any other municipality in
New Jersey. Nearly all this growth was a direct result
of the growth of Beth Medrash Govoha.

During the same period, the growth of BMG and
its directly affiliated community of students and
alumni placed Lakewood in the top ranks of New
Jersey communities in new housing starts, construc-
tion spending and other measures of development.
In addition, BMG itself spent hundreds of millions
of dollars in Lakewood on construction at its growing
campuses, and on payroll, purchasing, scholarships
and stipends for students who are residents of Lake-
wood.

BMG was founded in 1943 with 13 students; by
2010 its enrollment had grown to 6,203, forming
Lakewood's largest and most central enterprise.
BMG attracts world-class students from around the
globe who are drawn by its international reputation
for scholarly excellence. It is an accredited institution
of higher education, offering Bachelors, Masters
and post-Masters degree programs. BMG is re-
nowned for its rigorous Talmudic studies, the cor-
nerstone of a curriculum that emphasizes Judaic
learning, critical thinking, logic and analysis. Its
students graduate with a strong foundation in a
broad spectrum of liberal arts-related disciplines.

As a result, graduates pursue careers in a wide variety
of fields, including law, finance, business, arts,
education, social services, and academia. The major-
ity of BMG students remain in Lakewood after
graduation, increasing the region's knowledge base
and the cadre of local professionals that are es-
sential for economic growth and development.

This report examines several aspects of BMG's eco-
nomic and social impact on Lakewood and New
Jersey. Part One highlights BMG's "human capital"
contribution to the region, to the organizations and
institutions that serve the region, and BMG's role in
Lakewood's growth. Part Two details direct expen-
ditures by BMG and its students. These are the
mainstay of Lakewood's economy and have a mul-
tiplier effect in Ocean County and beyond.
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Part One
CONTRIBUTING TO HUMAN CAPITAL. AND COMMUNITY

In recent years a growing body of research has
confirmed the essential role of human capital —the
accumulated knowledge, skills and experience of a
population — in determining which communities
flourish and which do not. The higher-level skills
and knowledge acquired through higher education
are a particularly critical determinant of economic
growth. The central role that educational institutions
can play is evident in Lakewood, where BMG has
been the major contributor to the community's
growth.

Enrollment

For the Fall 2010 semester BMG enrolled 6,203
students in its undergraduate and graduate pro-
grams. Of these, 497 were newly enrolled students,
comprising 8 percent of the overall student body.
Approximately 66 percent of undergraduate and
94 percent of graduate students were residents of
Ocean County. These figures include students who

Undergraduate

Elsewher^ ~^ "~~
3 stud

09

Outside Nl
898 students

33%

Elsewhere in Nl _ /~
37 sWdenis /

1%

Ocean County
1 student
0%

originally came to Lakewood in order to study at
BMG and made the decision to establish permanent
residence in the Township, with many buying homes,
opening businesses and finding employment for
themselves or their family members.

As the leading "Yeshiva" in the country, BMG at-
tracts undergraduate students from 19 states and
many countries, which is reflected in the residence
figures below. Figure 1 shows the geographic dis-
tribution by the program in which students were
enrolled.

Students and alumni in Lakewood

According to the Census Bureau's American Com-
munity Survey, there were 13,932 families in Lake-
wood Township in 2009, of which 10,972 were
married-couple families.

Master's

Outside Nl
60 students
6%

Post-graduate and
fellows

Ocean County
2 students
0% ~

Elsewhere In NJ
5 students Outside NJ

35 students
1%
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BMG has 3,421 alumni (nearly all of whom have
families) living in Lakewood, and it is estimated that
in 2009, 25 percent of all families in Lakewood -one
out of every four —were headed by BMG alumni.
Additionally, in 2009 BMG had 4,752 students who
were married with families, and 1,234 students who
were single. The combined married student and
alumni population of BMG (8,173) represented
about 59 percent of all Lakewood families and 74
percent of all married-couple families in Lakewood.

In addition to BMG alumni and students, there are
other families affiliated with BMG who reside in
Lakewood. Although their contribution to the local
economy is not quantified here, it is no doubt sub-
stantial.

As these numbers indicate, BMG is a significant
contributor to the development of Lakewood's
overall human capital. While the BMG student
population represents a larger percentage of Lake-
wood's households, its alumni play a critical and
active role in the community as educators, business
owners, employees, volunteers and in a variety of
other capacities. The education sector is one where
alumni are most involved. BMG estimates that 95
percent of all teachers in the close to 100 Orthodox-
Jewish K-12 schools in Lakewood (in which some
twenty thousand students are enrolled) are either
BMG alumni, their spouses or students' spouses.

Measured by employment growth, education and
health services were the strongest sectors in Ocean
County during the past decade. Between 2001
and 2009, employment in Ocean County in these
sectors rose by 7,498. Job growth in these areas

Medicine and Dentistry V V M
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was especially important in light of the contin-
ued decline in the county's manufacturing sector
during the same period. Between 2001 and 2009,
manufacturing employment in Ocean County de-
clined by 25 percent, dropping from 6,128 to 4,575
jobs in 2009. Much of the growth in educational
employment in Ocean County was a direct result
of BMG and its alumni. There are now more than
twenty thousand children of BMG students, alumni
and other members of its affiliated community en-
rolled in private K-12 institutions in Lakewood.

BMG and its alumni have created or are active in
numerous civic and charitable organizations that
serve the entire Township, such as the Civilian Safety
Watch, Lakewood's Volunteer Fire Department,
Lakewood First Aid, Howell First Aid and more.
Below are a sampling of organizations that were
founded by BMG alumni and a description of the
activities in which they are engaged:

• Tomchei Shabbos Food Bank sponsors food
drives throughout Lakewood. It serves needy
families and its $1.5 million budget is funded
mostly from donations contributed by BMG
students and alumni.

The Lakewood Resource &Referral Center
(LRRC), a social service agency founded by
BMG, provides assistance with information and
referral, entitlement screening, advocacy and
problem resolution, case management, crisis
intervention, translation services, and immigra-
tion assistance. LRRC also provides housing
counseling, credit repair, mortgage counseling,
and training sessions for first-time home buyers.
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Hatzolah Paramedic & Hatzolah First Aid
Rescue is a volunteer ambulance and para-
medic service, which was founded by BMG
students, and is staffed by over 30 volunteers.
Emergency services are free of charge. Hatzolah
provides many other important services such as
searches for missing people and community
safety and first-aid training programs. Hatzolah
responds to some five thousand calls per year.

The Center for Health Education, Medicine,
and Dentistry (CHEMED) is afederally-qualified
health center that provided seventy thousand
medical consultations this past year. Services
include adult and pediatric primary care, dental
care, and behavioral health counseling. CHEMED
addresses a crucial need by providing high
quality health care to the uninsured, underin-
sured and the general Lakewood population.
Chemed was created by BMG.

Other major community organizations founded
by BMG are L.C.S.C., a social service agency;
NJ Hand, a builder of affordable housing; and
Professional Career Services, which provides
job training and placement. Other organizations
founded by BMG alumni include Bikur Cholim,
an agency that helps those with medical needs;
The Youth Mentoring Program for Teens at
Risk; and other nonprofit organizations.

BMG students, alumni and their families are also
well represented in the local business community.
While most businesses in Lakewood are not located
in Lakewood's Urban Enterprise Zone (UEZ), of the
449 UEZ certified businesses in Lakewood, 85 are

owned by BMG students or alumni, and many more
are owned by their spouses or other members of
the broader BMG-affiliated community. Many of
Lakewood's retail businesses are owned by BMG's
students, alumni and their families, and many of
Lakewood's businesses that opened in the past 5
years were started by BMG students, alumni and
their families.

Among the largest of many enterprises founded or
owned by BMG alumni is Gem Ambulance Medi
Transport, a medical transport company that was
founded in 1997. Gem serves hospitals, nursing
homes, healthcare facilities, and municipalities
throughout New Jersey, providing emergency
medical transport, mobility assistance, bus trans-
portation, and non-emergency ambulance treat-
ment, among other services. Gem employs 400
people.

Table 1, based on data obtained from Acculeads.com,
provides a sampling of Lakewood companies that
were started by BMG alumni.

In addition to the companies listed on the next page,
there are many smaller companies in Lakewood
founded by members of the BMG-affiliated com-
munity. For example, the Lakewood Cheder Business
Directory—the leading "yellow pages" directory for
the BMG-affiliated community —lists many small
businesses that are not included in the Acculeads.
com data. Based on an unduplicated count of busi-
nesses listed by these two sources, there appear to
be more than 4,500 businesses in Lakewood, of
which BMG estimates that 3,000 are affiliated with
the BMG community.
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Achieve 3000, Inc.

AcuteCare Healthcare System LLC

Astor Chocolate Corp.

Atlantic Coast Nursing

BP Graphics Inc.

Baths By Town &Country, Inc.

Chemed Health Center

Compcare Therapeutics, Inc.

Documed

Gem Ambulance & Medi Transport Ambulance

Jersey Central Management-..
Leisure Chateau Care Center

Madison Title LLC

Med Waste Management lLC

Oniine Services Saki Dodelson

Hospital Daniel Czermak

Food Manufacturing Dovid Grunhut

Long-Term Care Mendy Feigenbaum

Printing Binyomin Heinemann

FabridNon-woven Materials David Beyda

Primary Care BMG

Home Therapy Moshe Szanzer

Secretarial/Court Reporting Faigie Newman

Medical Transport Yaakov Jay Halpern

Mordy Schron
__
Joseph Rosenbaum

Joseph Rosenbaum

Avrohom Prager

Real Estate -.
Skilled Nursing Care

Real Estate Services

Management Services

126

200

350

170

30

50

100

306

158

400

250

250
_- - .--

152

60

Negba Bus Service, Inc. School Buses Aharon Rottenberg 60

Onyx Partners Real Estate Yirmiyahu Rieder 60

Tender Touch Rehab Rehabilitation Moshe Schwartz 700

The Lightstone Group PLC Real Estate David Lichtenstein 1,000

Town and Country Living Home Furnishings David Beyda 50

Sustained community growth

Aside from the role that BMG's students and alumni
played in the expansion of Lakewood's business
community, BMG's growth —much of which con-
tinued throughout one of the most severe recessions
in decades —has also stimulated investment in both
residential and commercial development in Lake-
wood Township.

Between 1991 and 2010, building permits were
issued for a total of 6,884 new and rehabilitated
units in Lakewood, representing a total investment
of nearly $796 million in residential construction
during this period. MoreovQr, the pace of residential
construction has remained strong in Lakewood
during the past few years, even as most of the
country has been mired in a prolonged housing
slump. In 2009, according to New Jersey's Depart-
ment of Community Affairs (DCA), Lakewood ranked
second among all New Jersey municipalities in the
number of new units authorized by building permits;

10 ~ DRIVING ECONOMIC GROWTH

and second in estimated spending on residential
construction (Table 2). In 2010, Lakewood ranked
first in both categories (Table 3).

Moreover, development in Lakewood is not limited
to housing. DCA reports that in 2009, permits were
issued for construction of 517,974 square feet of
educational buildings in Lakewood — 47 percent of
the statewide total of 1,105,220 square feet.

Lakewood's growth in construction and development
continued even through the most severe recession
in decades, with Lakewood continuing to attract
new investment —driven by the growth of BMG. In
the six years between 2005 and 2010, investment
in residential and commercial construction in Lake-
wood totaled more than $527 million (Figure 2). In
2010 Lakewood saw $93 million in construction,
placing it tenth statewide.
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Jersey City Hudson $283,185,705 1,129 Lakewood Township Ocean 553,362,287 403

Lakewood Township Ocean 452,220,068 368 Fluboken City Iiu<ison $53,348,500 254

Monroe Township Middlesex $50,857,115 328 West Windsor Township Mercer $51,766,280 323

Hoboken City Hudson $38,478,387 149 Monroe Township Middlesex $40,797,395 280

Newark City Essex $35,283,778 785 Jersey City Hudson $38,033,413 287

Camden City Camden $25,613,247 196 Franklin Township Somerset $37,708,817 299

South Brunswick Township Middlesex $25,120,723 98 Toms River Township Ocean $35,327,340 347

Union City Hudson $19,101,876 75 South Brunswick Township Middlesex $26,819,132 113

Princeton Township Mercer $16,606,683 20 Paterson City Passaic $26,459,027 297

Franklin Township Somerset $15,540,373 139 Newark City Essex $21,308,188 169

.Source: Newleney Construe tion Reporter, http:llwwwstate nj.usldraldivisions/
cadr. slreportedduildiny_permits.html}17

In 2009, permits were issued for construction
of 517,974 square feet of educational buildings
in ~al~ewood - 47 percent of the statewide total

of 1,105,220 square feet
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2005 2006 2007 2006 2009 2010

Jersey City Hudson $198,837,642

Plainsboro Township Middlesex $187,419,802

Franklin Township Somerset $187,231,859

Newark City [ssex $160,859,600

New 6runswick City Middlesex $121,803,351

Piscat.awayTownship Middlesex $105,225,246

Hoboken Ciry Hudson $98,301,994

Woodbridge Township Middlesex $97,479,503

Pararnus Borough Bergen $94,304,303

Lakewood Township Ocean 492,917,792

New Residential Apartments Serving the

Lakewood's growth in construction and
development continued even through the
most severe recession in decades
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Part Two
BETH MEDRASH G~VOHA AS AN ENTERPRISE

BMG is a'significant enterprise in its own right — as
an employer of Ocean County residents, a pur-
chaser of goods and services from local businesses,
and as an entity that undertakes new construction
projects. Through the multiplier effect, BMG's local
spending ripples throughout Ocean County's
economy, creating numerous jobs and increasing
economic activity in the area. Off-campus spending
by BMG students and their families also generates
jobs and economic activity in Lakewood Township
and Ocean County along with significant income
and sales tax revenue.

Employment and payroll

In fiscal year (FY)' 2010, BMG employed 268 people,
97 percent of whom lived in Lakewood Township.
261 employees (97 percent) lived in Lakewood, 1
lived elsewhere in New Jersey, and 6 lived outside
the state.

t Fiscal year 2010 covers the period from October i, 2009 through
September 30, 2010.

Outside Nl
52.6 million

26

Ocean
CounTy
{885,26.
9 °h

BMG's payroll in 2010 was $9.6 million. Almost 93
percent of payroll was paid to residents of New
Jersey, of which 98 percent went to residents of
Lakewood.

Purchasing

In addition to employing local residents directly,
BMG supports local businesses and creates employ-
ment opportunities for people within the region
through its purchases of goods and services.

In 2010, BMG spent $10.3 million on purchases of
goods and services (excluding construction). More
than half of this total —about $5.2 million —was
spent with vendors in Lakewood Township. Another
$885,263 was spent with vendors elsewhere. in
Ocean County, and $1.4 million was spent with
vendors elsewhere in New Jersey. Figure 3 illustrates
purchases by location of vendor.

BETH MEDRASH GOVOHA ~ 13
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55 million

$9 million

53 million

52 million

51 million

FY 2005 FY 2006 FY 2007 FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010

Using the IMPLANz input-output modeling system,
we estimate that the $6.08 million spent on pur-
chases of goods and services from Ocean County
businesses directly supported 54full-time-equivalent
jobs within Ocean County (primarily in Lakewood
Township).

Construction

BMG also creates business and employment
opportunities through campus construction.
During the past six years, BMG invested $18.1
million in construction and major renovation
projects on its campus in Lakewood. BMG's
spending on construction is shown in Figure 4.

2 IMPLAN is an economic modeling system commonly used in
local and regional economic impact analyses.
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Outside Nl

E9o~,~00
79%

Other
Ocean County
(785,330
17%

In FY 2010, BMG spent more than $4.7 million on
construction, including $2.5 million spent with
vendors in Lakewood Township, and an additional
$785,330 with vendors elsewhere in Ocean County.
BMG also spent $474,782 on construction with
vendors elsewhere in New Jersey. A breakdown of
construction spending by location of vendor is shown
in Figure 5.

Taking into account spending on construction during
FY 2010, the total construction spending of $3.3
million with Ocean County vendors directly sup-
ported 24full-time-equivalentjobs in Ocean County
in construction and related industries.

BMG Campus Expansion Construction:
9th Street Campus 2010 (Bais Aron)
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Payroll and employee 
$9.6 million $8.5 million $18.1 million

268jobs 103 jobs 371jobs

Purchasing and $9.4 million $2.7 million $12.1 million
construction 78 jobs

v 

30 jobs 108 jobs

Ocean County Total 
$19 million $11.2 million $30.2 million

346 jobs 133 jobs 479 jobs

it is worth noting that BMG's construction spending
is expected to accelerate during the next several
years. Between 2011 and 2015 BMG is likely to
spend some $45 million on construction and reno-
vation projects on its campus — an average of $9
million each year. This investment would directly
generate an average of 70full-time-equivalent jobs
each year for five years. While this figure is esti-
mated, BMG has already contracted nearly have
that figure, including $4.5 million for the expansion
of ahealth-related facility and $15 million for student
housing,

The multiplier effect

In addition to the direct economic impact of opera-
tions at BMG, the institution's spending on payroll,
purchases and construction also creates indirect
benefits for Lakewood Township and Ocean County.
Local businesses from which BMG purchases goods
and services (including construction) use part of the
money they receive from BMG to pay their local
suppliers, who in turn use part of that money to
buy goods and services from still another group of
local companies.

Similarly, BMG employees, and employees of BMG's
local suppliers spend part of their earnings on pur-
chases of goods and services —such as housing,
food, utilities, child care, personal items, and trans-
portation —from businesses located throughout the
county. The employees of those businesses then do
the same.

Using IMPLAN, an economic modeling system that
measures these "indirect and induced" (or "multi-
plier") effects, the broader impact of BMG's direct
spending can be described as follows:

• During FY 2010 BMG employed 268 workers
with. a total payroll of $9.6 million.

• We estimate that household spending by em-
ployees who live within Ocean County sup-
ported an additional 103 full-time equivalent
jobs and $8.5 million in economic output.

• In FY 2010 BMG spent $9.4 million on construc-
tion and purchases of goods and services with
vendors and contractors located throughout
Ocean County. We estimate this spending di-
rectly created 78 jobs in Ocean County.

• Through the multiplier effect, we estimate
spending with vendors and contractors on con-
struction and goods and services generated an
additional $2.7 million in economic output and
30 FTE jobs in Ocean County.

Taking into account direct spending and the muiti-
pliereffect, we estimate that in 2010 BMG's direct
operations generated $30.2 million in economic
output and 479 FTE jobs throughout Ocean County.
The combined impact of these is shown in Table 5.
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1,231 $3,785,325

4,972 $91,037,320

6, 203 $94, 822, 645

members of the BMG community own and operate
nearly 20 percent of these businesses. The UEZ's
dollars were rebated directly to Lakewood Township
and contributed significantly to the funding of es-
sential town-wide projects including loans to start-
upbusinesses, improvements to roads and enhance-
ments to the police department.

While we have not sought to quantify total BMG-
related revenues here, it is clear that the BMG-af-
filiated cornrnunity accounts for a large share of
Lakewood's tax base. The rapid residential develop-
ment that occurred in Lakewood during the past
twenty years (largely driven, as discussed in Part
One, by the growth of the BMG) has increased the
assessed value of the township's residential proper-
ties to more than $4.8 billion in 2010. From 2000
to 2010, BMG drove more than $3.3 billion in new
residential ratables to Lakewood's tax base, up from

Table 6: Spending by students, FY 2010

On-campus $3,075

Off-campus $18,310

TOTAL

Contributions to local taxes

BMG is anon-profit, IRS recognized 501(c)3 tax-
exempt institution that has a public purpose and
mission. BMG contributes directly to local finances
through payments of taxes and fees like state income
taxes and payroll taxes. In addition to the revenues
it pays directly, BMG also generates revenues indi-
rectly through its spending on goods and services;
through household spending by its employees,
alumni, and the affiliated community; and through
the many tax-paying businesses from which BMG
students, alumni and affiliated community buy goods
and services.

Local businesses with ties to BMG generate state
and local revenues. Lakewood's Urban Enterprise
Zone (UEZ) businesses alone channeled $6.5 million
to Trenton during 2010 —and as noted above,

New Residential Development Serving the
BMG Community: Westgate Community
of 1,000 Townhouses and Condominiums
Retail and Office ,~,.,,,,_, , . ~ 'e ~y

The rapid BMG driven residential development has
increased the assessed value of the township's
residential properties to more than $4.8 billion
in 2010, up from $1.5 billion ten years ago.
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The BMG community accounts for a large share of
the $141 million in township, school and county
property taxes paid in Lakewood in 2010.

$1.5 billion of assessed value in 2000. The BMG-
related community has also contributed to the
growing value of non-residential property in Lake-
wood, which as of 2010 totaled more than $1.5
billion, up from $674 million ten years ago.3 The
BMG community thus accounts for a large share of
the $141 million in township, school and county
property taxes paid in Lakewood in 20104, as well
as millions of dollars in state taxes —sales, business
and income taxes —paid by employees, households
and businesses with ties to BMG.

Spending by students

In the fall of 2010, BMG enrolled 6,203 full-time
and part-time students. Approximately 45 percent
of all undergraduate students lived in on-campus
housing facilities. The remaining 55 percent lived in
off-campus housing. Nearly all graduate students
lived in off-campus housing.

3 New Jersey Department of Community Affairs, Division of Local
Government Services, 2011.
4 Ibid.

New Downtown Office
Constructed by BMG
Alumni: Lexington
Towers 5 Story Offic
Constructed 2008

Based on estimates by the Department of Health
and Human Services, as well as College Board esti-
mates of student-living costs at similar institutions
(for items such as rent, books, food, transportation
and personal expenses), we estimate that spending
by students who live in or near the Township of
Lakewood to be approximately $94.8 million. (This
figure does not include spending by the families of
alumni or the affiliated community.)

In 2010 BMG awarded cash-living-expense stipends
to students who are residents of Lakewood in excess
of $12 million.

We estimate that off-campus spending by the 6,203
students at BMG who lived in Ocean County or
elsewhere in New Jersey directly supported 810 FTE
jobs. Additionally, we estimate that, through the
multiplier effect, student spending generated an
additional $20.1 million in economic output and
156 FTE jobs throughout Ocean County. Spending
by BMG students in 2010 is summarized in Table 6.

nio~.. aer~;i no~.o~.,.,..,o.,r co.~,;.,., rtia aner,
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BMG Impact

Taking into account the combined impact of student
spending and BMG's spending on payroll, purchas-
ing, and construction, we estimate that BMG di-
rectly and indirectly generated $145.1 million in
output and 1,445 FTE jobs in Ocean County in FY
2010. Table 7 summarizes the total economic
impacts

An institution's economic impact can be viewed
from several perspectives, each of which casts some
light on the institution's value to the community. it
should be noted that the $145 million in economic
output and 1,445 jobs generated in fiscal year 2010
by the spending of Beth Medrash Govoha, its em-
ployees and its students is compounded by the
impact of household spending by the families of
BMG alumni and others inthe BMG-affiliated com-
munity —which we have not tried to quantify here

5 It is important to note that this estimate of economic impact is
in'effect a snapshot of BMG's impact in a single year; it does not capture
the cumulative impact of BMG's growth over the past two decades. Moreover,
it includes only the impact of local spending by BMG itself, and of household
spending by its employees and students. It does not include the impact of
spending by BMG alumni or other members of the broader BMG commu-
nity.

', Table 7: Impact of BMG and student spending, FY 2010

—and by the spending of the local businesses, com-
munity organizations and institutions they have
created.

BMG's impact can also be measured over time by
the cumulative effects of its sustained contributions
(economic and otherwise) to the township's remark-
able growth during the past two decades, and to
the development of the community's human, social
and intellectual capital. To an extent that few col-
leges oruniversities elsewhere can match, BMG has
clearly been the primary driver of Lakewood's recent
growth, and of the revitalization of the local
economy.

Payroll and employee
$9.6 million $8.5 million $18.1 million

268 jobs 103 jobs 371 jobs

Purchasing and $9.4 million $2.7 million $12.1 million
construction 78 jobs 30 jobs 108 jobs,

Student
$94.8 million $20.1 million $114.9 million,:

810 jobs 156 jobs 966 jobs:,

Ocean County Total
$113.8 million $31.3 million $145.1 million"

1,156 jobs 289 jobs 1,445 jobs'
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BMG has been the primary driver of
~al~ewood's recent growth, and of the

revitalization of the local economy
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BMG's Campuses —Lakewood, NJ
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For more information, contact:

Beth Medrash Govoha
Beren Center Executive ONices

617 SiMh Street
Lakewood, Newlersey08701

732-367-1060 Ext 4234
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